
 

 

 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   

  

 

Mayor: Dennis Norton 
Vice Mayor: Ed Bottorff 
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand 
 Stephanie Harlan 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer Christine McBroom 

  

 

SPECIAL JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 25, 2015   
 

6:00 PM 
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 PM 
CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 

 An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6) 

  Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police 
Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; and (5) 
Mid-Management Group 

 



SPECIAL JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - Wednesday, February 25, 2015  
 

 

 

SPECIAL JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION - 6:00 PM  
 All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Tuesday preceding a Capitola City 

Council/Successor Agency Special Joint Budget Study Session will be distributed to 
Council/Agency Members to review prior to the meeting.  Information submitted after 5 p.m. on 
that Tuesday may not have time to reach Council/Agency Members, nor be read by them prior to 
consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Special Joint Budget Study Session of the Capitola City 
Council/Successor Agency Agenda shall be considered as Public Hearings. 

 
2. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Ed Bottorff, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and 
Mayor/Chair Dennis Norton 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS 

 A Introduction of the City's new Senior Accountant, Mark Sullivan. 
 

4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 
5. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

 Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes. A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 

 
7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

 City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 
8. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 A Quarterly Financial Reports – Second Quarter Budget Report and First Quarter Sales 
Tax Report. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
the Second Quarter Budget Report and First Quarter Sales Tax Report.  

 
9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 
 A. Receive Mid-Year 2014/2015 Fiscal Year Budget Financial Report, and consider budget 

amendments. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Report, and consider budget amendments. 



SPECIAL JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - Wednesday, February 25, 2015  
 

 

 
 B. Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual Actuarial Valuation 

Reports as of June 30, 2014. (This agenda item was continued from the February 11, 
2015, City Council meeting.) 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive the Reports. 

 
 C. Review of prior year’s Budget Principles and determination of the Budget Principles for 

the 2014/2015 Fiscal Year. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Report. 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council on Thursday, February 26, 2015, at 7:00 
PM, in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are available 
for review on the City’s website:  www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.     Agendas are also available at 
the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola.  Need more information?   Contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on 
Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and 
Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on 
the Home Page link “Meeting Video”.  Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 

 

 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25; 2015 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORTS - SECOND QUARTER BUDGET REPORT 
AND FIRST QUARTER SALES TAX REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Second Quarter Budget Report and First Quarter Sales 
Tax Report. 

BACKGROUND: The CitY's quarterly reports are typically posted to the City's website in the last 
week of the month for the preceding quarter. These reports are also placed on the City Council 
agenda for informational purposes. 

DISCUSSION: The attached quarterly reports contain information for the following dates: 

• Second Quarter Budget Report: October 1 to December 31,2014. 

• First Quarter Sales Tax Report: July 1 to September 30,2014. 
The First Quarter Sales Tax Report reflects revenues earned for the period listed above. 
Sales tax information for the quarter ended December 31, 2014, will not be available until 
March 2015. 

Detailed information on both subjects can be found in the attached documents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: This action is administrative and should not result in a financial impact. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Second Quarter Budget Report 
2. First Quarter Sales Tax Report 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and FOI"UI~erl 
by City Manager: '-+-r"'-,;,,_~_ 

\) 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\20 15 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\QuarterIy Financial Reports _ StaffReport.docx -1-

Item #: 8.A Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25; 2015 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORTS - SECOND QUARTER BUDGET REPORT 
AND FIRST QUARTER SALES TAX REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the Second Quarter Budget Report and First Quarter Sales 
Tax Report. 

BACKGROUND: The City's quarterly reports are typically posted to the City's website in the last 
week of the month for the preceding quarter. These reports are also placed on the City Council 
agenda for informational purposes. 

DISCUSSION: The attached quarterly reports contain information for the following dates: 

• Second Quarter Budget Report: October 1 to December 31,2014. 

• First Quarter Sales Tax Report: July 1 to September 30,2014. 
The First Quarter Sales Tax Report reflects revenues earned for the period listed above. 
Sales tax information for the quarter ended December 31, 2014, will not be available until 
March 2015. 

Detailed information on both subjects can be found in the attached documents. 

FISCAL IMPACT: This action is administrative and should not result in a financial impact. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Second Quarter Budget Report 
2. First Quarter Sales Tax Report 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and FOI"UI~erl 
by City Manager: '-+-r"'-,;,,_~_ 

\) 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\20 15 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\QuarterIy Financial Reports _ StaffReport.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-2-



 

Budget Report 
Second Quarter – FY14/15 

Funded In Progress Complete
Cliffwood Heights Slurry Seal

Riverview Terrace Slurry Seal

Clares & Wharf Traffic Calming

Bay Street Streetscape

Park Avenue Sidewalk

Park Avenue Paving & Bike Lane

Rosedale Ave., Rosedale Circle, Carl and Alma Lanes

Monterey & Park Railroad Station Park & Pathway

Measure O - CIP Project Update

Overview: 
This report summarizes the City’s overall financial position for the current fiscal year through December 2014.  
Except as noted below, revenue and operating expenditures are generally consistent with annual projections.       
 
 

Measure O Progress Report 
On November 26, 2012, voters approved Measure O, instituting a 0.25% local sales tax.  The City also receives a 
second 0.25% sales tax, Measure D, which is anticipated to expire in 2017.  During the five-year period when both 
sales tax measures are in place, a plan was developed to devote 100% of Measure O revenues to the following 
priorities: Restore reserves, repair and repave City streets; and support community policing projects.  An update 
on the five-year plan, as well as the status on funded CIP projects are listed below:   
 

 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 Total 
CIP/Street Maint. $94,600 $490,900 $504,900 $655,000 $965,000 $2,710,400 
Reserves 136,500 463,100 447,700 273,000 - 1,320,300 
PW Crew 9,100 45,950 63,300 100,000 100,000 318,350 
PD Staff 5,400 18,800 26,000 35,000 35,000 120,200 
  Total Measure O $245,600 $1,018,750 $1,041,900 $1,063,000 $1,100,000 $4,469,250 
Funding Goal Met   In Progress    
       
GF to Reserves $350,000 $150,000 $200,000   $700,000 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2014/15 General Fund - Second Quarter Results:  
The fiscal year is 50% complete, with General Fund revenues trending at 43% of the Amended Budget and 
expenditures at 48%.  Although revenues are less than 50% of the budget, this variation is typical due to revenue 
receipting patterns.  The negative operating difference is covered from the General Fund balance or through 
short-term loans from the Contingency Reserve Fund.  Additional details can be found in the preceding sections. 
 

General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison     

Amended Budget YTD Transactions Percent   Prior Year 

Beginning Fund Balance  $          1,077,216   $              1,077,216        
  Revenues            14,284,050                  6,166,403  43%    $       5,974,542  
  Expenditures            12,512,449                  5,981,822  48%              5,629,448  
Operating Subtotal              1,771,601                     184,581                    345,094  
Other Financing:           
  (CIP, Debt Service, Reserves)              2,320,025                     812,037  35%              1,085,360  
FY14/15 Operating Difference  $          (548,424) $             (627,456)      $         (740,266) 
Est. Fund Balance   $             528,792   $                449,760        

-3-

Item #: 8.A Attach 1.pdf

112 i:i s: 
~~ !'b .' ~~R"~' 

./ ./ 

I I I I l I 



Key Revenues: 

Revenue 

Budgetary Comparison 
 

  

Amended Budget YTD Transactions 
% Used / 

Rec'd   Prior Year 
Taxes:           
  Property Taxes  $                    1,762,900  $                       944,797  54%    $            883,109  
  Sales and Use Tax              7,318,600             2,637,539  36%       2,657,615  
  Document Transfer Tax                             -                     33,153  -             21,012  
  Business License Tax                 280,800                 100,083  36%             75,937  
  Franchise Tax                 485,200                 135,433  28%           112,297  
  TOT Tax              1,251,000                 649,090  52%           660,270  
Subtotal - Taxes  $                  11,098,500   $                  4,500,095 41%    $         4,410,240  
            
Other:           
Licenses and permits  $                        254,450   $                      122,177  48%    $            114,758  
Intergovernmental revenues 168,700  108,721 64%             37,798  
Charges for services 1,921,400  1,009,288 53%       1,034,514  
Fines and forfeitures 718,800  373,390 52%           315,976  
Use of money & property 51,800  11,750 23%             10,732  
Other revenues 70,400  40,982 58%             50,524  
Other financing sources -  - 0%                        -  
Extraordinary Items -  - 0%                        -  
Subtotal - Other Revenues              3,185,550             1,666,308  52%       1,564,302  
Total Revenues  $                  14,284,050   $                  6,166,403  43%    $         5,974,542  

 

Taxes    
The City receives sales, property, franchise, and business license taxes on alternate schedules.  Due to the timing 
of revenue receipts only 41% of the revenues were received in the first two quarters of FY 14/15.  The 41% 
excludes a portion of the second quarter sales tax receipts and a large portion of business license and franchise 
tax revenues.  While sales tax receipts are $20,076 below the prior year, the actual performance has increased by 
more than 2.4% or $47,483.  This variance is due to a $67,559 greater than typical In-Lieu adjustment in FY 13/14.   
Property tax is trending $61,688 greater than the prior year.  This is largely due to increased secured property tax 
assessment valuations and related property taxes in-lieu of motor vehicle receipts in the amounts of $32,140 and 
$26,162, respectively.  This increase is consistent with projected increases provided by the County Auditor 
Controller. 
 

The following chart providing three-year tax trend information is provided for reference: 
 

FY13

FY13

FY13

FY13

FY14

FY14

FY14

FY14

FY15

FY15

FY15

FY15

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

Sales Tax Property Tax TOT Tax Other Tax

Three Year Tax Trends:  Second Quarter
Fiscal Year End (FY)

(in millions)

 -4-

Item #: 8.A Attach 1.pdf



Additional three-year revenue trend information is presented below:   
 

FY13

FY13

FY13

FY13FY14

FY14

FY14

FY14FY15

FY15

FY15

FY15

$0.0

$0.2

$0.4

$0.6

$0.8

$1.0

$1.2

Licenses and Permits Charges for Services Fines and Forfeitures Other

Additional Three Year Revenue Trends:  Second Quarter 
Fiscal Year End (FY)

(in millions)

 
 
Charges for Services   
Charges for Services are relatively consistent with the budget; however it is trending $25,226 less than the prior 
year.  This is primarily due to a planned annual reduction in Successor Agency Administrative fees of $100,000, 
with a $50,000 reduction attributed to the first half of the year.  This amount is primarily offset by increased 
parking meter revenues of approximately $14,000. 
 
Fines and Forfeitures  
Fines and Forfeitures have increased over the prior year by $57,414, with over $48,000 representing increased 
parking citation fines.  
 
 Other - Intergovernmental Revenues 
Due to reimbursement patterns related to grants, the timing of intergovernmental revenue receipts can be 
variable.  Increased reimbursements include approximately $11,000 in Peace Officers Standards and Training 
(POST) reimbursements, $15,484 in State Mandated Claims, and $42,800 in Police Department grants.   
 
Expenditures: 
 

All expenditures are relatively consistent with the budget and prior year expenditures.  The subsequent notes 
provide a description of any variances. 
 

Expenditures by Category 

Budgetary Comparison     

Amended Budget YTD Transactions 
% Used/ 

Rec'd   Prior Year 
Personnel  $              7,985,744   $             3,816,518  48%    $              3,663,417  
Contract Services                  2,762,750  1,352,826  49%   1,112,787  
Training & Memberships                        83,545  36,503  44%   33,708  
Supplies                      550,000  226,686 41%   243,045  
Grants and Subsidies                      269,763  123,965  46%   127,670  
Capital Outlay                        10,000  - 0%   2,358  
Internal Service Fund Charges                      850,647  425,324  50%   446,463  
Other Financing Uses - Transfers                  2,320,025  812,037  35%   1,085,360  
Fund Totals: General Fund  $            14,832,474   $             6,793,859 46%    $              6,714,808  

  
 
 
 
   

  
 
 
 
 
       

-5-

Item #: 8.A Attach 1.pdf



 

Expenditures By Department 

Budgetary Comparison     

Amended Budget YTD Transactions 
% Used/ 

Rec'd   Prior Year 
City Council  $                 127,115   $                   61,971  49%    $                   52,171  
City Manager                      850,228                      378,618  45%                       387,019  
Personnel                      201,926                        85,461  42%                          75,887  
City Attorney                      185,000                        79,157  43%                          79,000  
Finance                      805,886                      317,143  39%                       333,700  
Community Grants                      269,763                      123,965  46%                       127,670  
Public Safety                  5,968,947                   2,969,054  50%                    2,773,887  
Public Works                  2,442,029                   1,177,876  48%                    1,060,351  
Community Development & Building                      702,830                      327,459  47%                       282,896  
Culture and Leisure                      958,725                      461,118  48%                       456,867  
Other Financing Uses - Transfers                  2,320,025                     812,037  35%                   1,085,360  
Expenditure Totals  $            14,832,474   $             6,793,859 46%    $              6,714,808  

 
Personnel  
The personnel numbers presented are trending consistently with the number of payrolls processed.  The FY 14/15 
salaries are approximately $153,000 greater than the prior year due to filling vacant positions, an additional 
Maintenance Worker, and a cost of living increase.   
 
Contract Services 
Contract Services are approximately $240,000 more than the prior year.  This is primarily due to timing 
differences associated with a $93,400 payment for Emergency Communication Center costs, $30,700 for 
stormwater, path maintenance, and creek monitoring fees; $21,900 in Building Consultant and Plan Check 
contracts; and a $65,000 payment to the Soquel Union Elementary School District for one-time property 
maintenance.  It is anticipated that the majority of the $65,000 payment will be cost-neutral due to offsets in 
other maintenance accounts. 
 
Other Financing Uses   
Other financing uses decreased by $273,323 when compared to the prior year.  This reduction is primarily due to 
increased transfers in FY 13/14, which included supplementary transfers of $156,000 to the Information 
Technology and Equipment Funds; and a $52,313 Department of Finance recapture related to the RDA 
dissolution.  Additional variances are primarily related to timing differences. 
 
Three year expenditure trend information by category is presented in the following chart. 

 

FY13

FY13 FY13

FY14

FY14

FY14

FY15

FY15
FY15

$0.0

$0.5

$1.0

$1.5

$2.0

$2.5

$3.0

$3.5

$4.0

$4.5

Personnel Contract Services Supplies, Internal Service 
Funds, Other

Three Year Expenditure Trends:  Second Quarter
Fiscal Year End (FY)

(in millions)

 -6-

Item #: 8.A Attach 1.pdf



Closed businesses - Since 2009                   New Businesess - Since 2008
Gottschalks Department Store BevMo late 2008
Mervyn's Department Store SC Subaru Mazda late 2008
Ocean Chevrolet-Honda Whole Foods July 2009

Kohls Sept. 2009
Target July 2012

 

Sales Tax Revenue Report 
First Quarter – Fiscal Year 14/15 

Total sales tax receipts for the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2014-15 were $40,082 or 2.7% greater than the 
prior year and $1,844 or 0.1% lower than the Amended Budget.  The annual Bradley-Burns increase was 
$18,567 or 1.9%, while the Measure O increase was $14,374 or 5.7%.  The Bradley-Burns and Measure O 
sales tax receipts contributed $32,941 or 82% to the City’s overall sales tax growth.  A table detailing the First 
Quarter results is listed below. 
 

 

First Quarter Sales Tax Revenue Analysis 
 

 
 

 
 

Sales Tax Top Performers from 2009 through 2014 (alphabetically) 
 

 
 

 
 

2014

Description Actual
Amended 
Budget Actual Amount % Amount %

Q1 Bradley Burns - 3/4% 969,130$    996,100$    987,697$    (8,403)$   -0.8% 18,567$    1.9%
Q1 Measure D - 1/4% 259,765$    264,500$    266,906$    2,406$    0.9% 7,141$      2.7%
Q1 Measure O - 1/4% 251,779$    262,000$    266,153$    4,153$    1.6% 14,374$    5.7%

1,480,674$ 1,522,600$ 1,520,756$ (1,844)$   -0.1% 40,082$    2.7%

2015
Actual vs. 

Amended Budget
Actual vs. Prior 

Year

AT&T Wireless Macy's Department Store Shell 1649 41st
Bed Bath & Beyond Nob Hill General Stores Toyota of Santa Cruz
Big 5 Sporting Goods O'Neill Surf Shop Trader Joe's 
Chevron 1650 41st Orchard Supply Hardware Union 76 2178 41st
Chevron 836 Bay Ross Stores Union 76 2195 41st
CVS Drug Stores Sears Roebuck & Company Verizon Wireless
Gayle's Bakery & Rosticceria Shadowbrook Restaurant Zelda's Restaurant

-7-

Item #: 8.A Attach 2.pdf

o<t~~ 
~o iJ ~ 
'1: ~ 

~~W 

$1,200,000 

$1,000,000 

$800,000 

$600,000 

$400,000 

$200,000 

$-

Q12009-10 through 2014-15 
Bradley-Burns Sales Tax Revenue 

-l-_________ ----1~~L~~~~.....::'..:$987,697 

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 

thannah
Typewritten Text

thannah
Typewritten Text

thannah
Typewritten Text

thannah
Typewritten Text

thannah
Typewritten Text



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-8-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25,2014 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MID·YEAR 2014/15 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

• Receive mid-year report and amend the Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget based on the attached 
budget adjustment. 

• Authorize the staff changes as outlined in the staff report. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Mid-Year Budget Report provides an update on the City's financial status, as well as a projected 
year-end balance. A recommended budget amendment is also included to reflect updated estimates. 
All mid-year projections are based on the City's actual revenues and expenditures through December 
31,2014; and any supplementary information received from State or County resources. The mid-year 
budget includes an update on the City's fund balance. The City ended Fiscal Year 2013/14 with a 
fund balance of $1 ,077,200. 

The Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget originally projected a net operating surplus of $14,196, and 
a $616,396adjusted fund balance. The Adopted Budget includes $475,000 in additional·fund balance 
appropriations to support CIP projects, reserves, arid a new Facilities Reserve Fund. During the 
Fiscal Year 2014/15 CIP presentation, an additional $75,000 appropriation was earmarked for ADA 
projects. This additional appropriation is included with the mid"7year budget adjustments. Based on 
updated budgetary projections, the net operating surplus is estimated to be $171,697, which results in 
an updated fiscal year-end fund balance of $648,897. Changes from the Adopted to Amended 
Budgets include Council-approved budget adjustments, and carry-forward contracts and grants. 

A summary of the FY 2014/15 General Fund Budget is presented below. 

Beginning Fund Balance 
Less Items Allocated in FY 14/15 Budget 

Transfer to Reserves 
Transfer to CIP 
Transfer to Facilities Reserve Fund 

Less Budget Amendment: McGregor Park, Skate Park Elements 
Less Pending ADA Project Commitment 

Adjusted Fund Balance 

Sources: 
Revenues 

Uses: 
Expenditures 
Transfers 

Total Uses: 

Net Difference 

Estimated Fund Balance 

Adopted 

$ 1,077,200 

200,000 
200,000 

75,000 

$ 602,200 

$ 14,284,050 

$ 12,474,829 
1,795,025 

$ 14,269,854 

$ 14,196 

$ 616,396 

Year-End 
Amended Estimate 

$ 1,077,200 $ 1,077,200 

200,000 200,000 
200,000 200,000 

75,000 75,000 
50,000 50,000 

75,000 
$ 552,200 $ 477,200 

$ 14,284,050 $ 14,573,845 

$ 12,512,449 $ 12,607,123 
1,795,025 1,795,025 

$ 14,307,474 $ 14,402,148 

$ (23,424) $ 171,697 

$ 528,776 $ 648,897 
-9-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25,2014 

FROM: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: MID·YEAR 2014/15 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET REPORT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
• Receive mid-year report and amend the Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget based on the attached 

budget adjustment. 

• Authorize the staff changes as outlined in the staff report. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Mid-Year Budget Report provides an update on the City's financial status, as well as a projected 
year-end balance. A recommended budget amendment is also included to reflect updated estimates. 
All mid-year projections are based on the City's actual revenues and expenditures through December 
31,2014; and any supplementary information received from State or County resources. The mid-year 
budget includes an update on the City's fund balance. The City ended Fiscal Year 2013/14 with a 
fund balance of $1 ,077,200. 

The Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget originally projected a net operating surplus of $14,196, and 
a $616,396adjusted fund balance. The Adopted Budget includes $475,000 in additional·fund balance 
appropriations to support CIP projects, reserves, arid a new Facilities Reserve Fund. During the 
Fiscal Year 2014/15 CIP presentation, an additional $75,000 appropriation was earmarked for ADA 
projects. This additional appropriation is included with the mid"7year budget adjustments. Based on 
updated budgetary projections, the net operating surplus is estimated to be $171,697, which results in 
an updated fiscal year-end fund balance of $648,897. Changes from the Adopted to Amended 
Budgets include Council-approved budget adjustments, and carry-forward contracts and grants. 

A summary of the FY 2014/15 General Fund Budget is presented below. 

Beginning Fund Balance 
Less Items Allocated in FY 14/15 Budget 

Transfer to Reserves 
Transfer to CIP 
Transfer to Facilities Reserve Fund 

Less Budget Amendment: McGregor Park, Skate Park Elements 
Less Pending ADA Project Commitment 

Adjusted Fund Balance 

Sources: 
Revenues 

Uses: 
Expenditures 
Transfers 

Total Uses: 

Net Difference 

Estimated Fund Balance 

Adopted 

$ 1,077,200 

200,000 
200,000 

75,000 

$ 602,200 

$ 14,284,050 

$ 12,474,829 
1,795,025 

$ 14,269,854 

$ 14,196 

$ 616,396 

Year-End 
Amended Estimate 

$ 1,077,200 $ 1,077,200 

200,000 200,000 
200,000 200,000 

75,000 75,000 
50,000 50,000 

75,000 
$ 552,200 $ 477,200 

$ 14,284,050 $ 14,573,845 

$ 12,512,449 $ 12,607,123 
1,795,025 1,795,025 

$ 14,307,474 $ 14,402,148 

$ (23,424) $ 171,697 

$ 528,776 $ 648,897 



Revenues 
General Fund revenues are projected to increase by $289,795. This difference is primarily due to the 
estimated increased property tax revenues of $142,000, which includes a $40,000 RDA residual 
distribution. These increased property tax revenues are consistent with increased property valuations 
within the City and updated information from the County Auditor-Controller's Office. This represents a 
6% increase in base secured property tax revenues over the prior year. Additional increases include 
$45,500 in intergovernmental reimbursements for a Safe Routes to Schools grant; and Charges for 
Services increases of $25,000 for Community Development Fees; and $19,000 in paystation 
revenues. 

Sales tax is the City's largest source of revenue. The first quarter results, net of in-lieu revenues, were 
relatively consistent with the budgeted amount. Actual sales increased by 2.5% or $47,482 over the 
same time period in the prior year. 

Revenue performance in TOT remains relatively constant, with revenues varying between hospitality 
establishments. The mid-year revenues were $11,180 less than the first two quarters of the last fiscal 
year. This decrease could be partially attributed to a $48,300 internal hotel adjustment that took place 
in fiscal year 2013/14. 

FY14/:15 
~ ~ 

Reveoue Adopted Amended Budget Estimate 
- -- -

Variance 

Taxes 

Property Tax $1,762,900 $1,762,900 $1,904,900 $142,000 

Sales Tax 7,318,600 7,318,600 7,315,454 (3,146) 

Business License Tax 280,800 280,800 280,800 

Franchise Fees 485,200 485,200 485,200 

TOT Tax 1,251,000 1,251,000 1,251,800 800 

Documentary Transfer Tax 33,200 33,200 

Licenses and permits 254,450 254,450 249,450 (5,000) 

Intergovernmental revenues 168,700 168,700 235,016 66,316 

Charges for services 1,921,400 1,921,400 1,980,900 59,500 

Fines and forfeitures 718,800 718,800 718,800 

Use of money & property 51,800 51,800 51,800 

Other revenues 70,400 70,400 66,525 (3,875) 

Other financing sources 0 0 0 

Revenue Totals $14,284,050 $14,284,050 $14,573,845 $289,795 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditures through the end of this fiscal year are $169,674 above of the budgeted amounts. 
Personnel costs are estimated to be $78,937 below the budgeted amount primarily due to filling vacant 
positions at lower salary steps and staffing transitions. Approximately $60,000 in salary savings was 
transferred to Contract Services to provide coverage for vacant Building Division and Finance 
Department vacancies. Additional contract increases include a $46,000 grant with corresponding 
revenues; projected water rate increases of $28,000; stormwater and creek compliance costs of 
$13,000; and maintenance, equipment, and audit fees of $15,000. Expenditures by Major Expense 
Category are presented below followed by a chart identifying expenditures by department: 

2 -10-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

Revenues 
General Fund revenues are projected to increase by $289,795. This difference is primarily due to the 
estimated increased property tax revenues of $142,000, which includes a $40,000 RDA residual 
distribution. These increased property tax revenues are consistent with increased property valuations 
within the City and updated information from the County Auditor-Controller's Office. This represents a 
6% increase in base secured property tax revenues over the prior year. Additional increases include 
$45,500 in intergovernmental reimbursements for a Safe Routes to Schools grant; and Charges for 
Services increases of $25,000 for Community Development Fees; and $19,000 in paystation 
revenues. 

Sales tax is the City's largest source of revenue. The first quarter results, net of in-lieu revenues, were 
relatively consistent with the budgeted amount. Actual sales increased by 2.5% or $47,482 over the 
same time period in the prior year. 

Revenue performance in TOT remains relatively constant, with revenues varying between hospitality 
establishments. The mid-year revenues were $11,180 less than the first two quarters of the last fiscal 
year. This decrease could be partially attributed to a $48,300 internal hotel adjustment that took place 
in fiscal year 2013/14. 

FY14115 FY14/15
c 

FYJ4/15 
~ ~ 

- - -- -

Re\teoue Adopted Amended Budget Estimate Variance 

Taxes 

Property Tax $1,762,900 $1,762,900 $1,904,900 $142,000 

Sales Tax 7,318,600 7,318,600 7,315,454 (3,146) 

Business License Tax 280,800 280,800 280,800 

Franchise Fees 485,200 485,200 485,200 

TOT Tax 1,251,000 1,251,000 1,251,800 800 

Documentary Transfer Tax 33,200 33,200 

Licenses and permits 254,450 254,450 249,450 (5,000) 

Intergo\iernmental re\ienues 168,700 168,700 235,016 66,316 

Charges for services 1,921,400 1,921,400 1,980,900 59,500 

Fines and forfeitures 718,800 718,800 718,800 

Use of money & property 51,800 51,800 51,800 

Other re\ienues 70,400 70,400 66,525 (3,875) 

Other financing sources 0 0 0 

Revenue Totals $14,284,050 $14,284,050 $14,573,845 $289,795 

Expenditures 
Operating expenditures through the end of this fiscal year are $169,674 above of the budgeted amounts. 
Personnel costs are estimated to be $78,937 below the budgeted amount primarily due to filling vacant 
positions at lower salary steps and staffing transitions. Approximately $60,000 in salary savings was 
transferred to Contract Services to provide coverage for vacant Building Division and Finance 
Department vacancies. Additional contract increases include a $46,000 grant with corresponding 
revenues; projected water rate increases of $28,000; stormwater and creek compliance costs of 
$13,000; and maintenance, equipment, and audit fees of $15,000. Expenditures by Major Expense 
Category are presented below followed by a chart identifying expenditures by department: 

2 



FY14/15 
I::xpendj!ures by gategory·· Adopted. Amend~d Budget "~Estimate';··· 

Personnel $7,985,744 _ $7,985,744 $7,906,807 ($78,937) 

Contract Services 2,725,130 2,762,750 2,921,578 $158,828 

Training and Memberships 83,545 83,545 82,600 ($945) 

Supplies 550,000 550,000 565,728 $15,728 

Grants and Subsidies 269,763 269,763 269,763 $0 

Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 10,000 $0 

Internal Service Funds 850,647 850,647 850,647 $0 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers $0 

Reserves 647,700 647,700 647,700 $0 

CIP -864,900 914,900 989,900 $75,000 

Facilities 167,000 167,000 167,000 $0 

Other 590,425 590,425 590,425 $0 

Expenditure Totals $14,744,854 $14,832,474 $15,002,148 $169,674 

... FY 14/15 FY 14/15 FY 1411~' I, 
Expenditure By Department Adopted .... AmendedBudgei' Estimc:lte ··• Variailc"e 
City Council $127,115 $127,115 $125,240 ($1,875) 
City Manager 850,228 850,228 847,919 (2,309) 
Personnel 201,926 201,926 209,744 7,818 
City Attorney 185,000 185,000 187,323 2,323 
Finance 800,366 805,886 789,080 (16,806) 
Community Grants 269,763 269,763 269,763 0 
Law Enforcement 5,338,631 5,338,631 5,365,860 27,229 
Parking Enforcement 534,916 534,916 552,180 17,264 
Lifeguard 71,900 71,900 71,900 0 
Animal Services 23,500 23,500 23,500 0 
Public Works 2,417,429 2,442,029 2,471,868 29,839 
Community Development 695,330 702,830 739,122 36,292 
Recreation 847,398 847,398 843,337 (4,061) 
Museum 65,175 65,175 64,135 (1,040) 
Arts & Culture 46,152 46,152 46,152 0 

12,474,829 12,512,449 12,607,123 94,674 
Non-Departmental/Transfers 

Reserves 647,700 647,700 647,700 -

CIP 864,900 914,900 989,900 75,000 
Facilities 167,000 167,000 167,000 -
Other 590,425 590,425 590,425 0 

Expenditure Totals 14,744,854 14,832,474 15,002,148 169,674 

Staff has remained cautiously optimistic in preparing the mid-year estimate. All core General Fund 
revenues are performing relatively consistent with their budgeted amount. The attached budget 
amendment proposes to make adjustments for the identified increases, as well as the reductions. 
Proposed adjustments to other funds are presented in a second budget adjustment. 

3 -11-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

FY14/15 FY14/15 
I::xpendj!ures by gategory·· Adopted. Amend~d Budget "~Estimate';··· 

Personnel $7,985,744 _ $7,985,744 $7,906,807 ($78,937) 

Contract Services 2,725,130 2,762,750 2,921,578 $158,828 

Training and Memberships 83,545 83,545 82,600 ($945) 

Supplies 550,000 550,000 565,728 $15,728 

Grants and Subsidies 269,763 269,763 269,763 $0 

Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 10,000 $0 

Internal Service Funds 850,647 850,647 850,647 $0 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers $0 

Reserves 647,700 647,700 647,700 $0 

CIP -864,900 914,900 989,900 $75,000 

Facilities 167,000 167,000 167,000 $0 

Other 590,425 590,425 590,425 $0 

Expenditure Totals $14,744,854 $14,832,474 $15,002,148 $169,674 

.. > FY 14/15 FY 14/15 .. FY 1411~' I· .. 
Expenditure By Department Adopted .... AmendedBudgei' Estimc:lte ··• Variailc"e 
City Council $127,115 $127,115 $125,240 ($1,875) 
City Manager 850,228 850,228 847,919 (2,309) 
Personnel 201,926 201,926 209,744 7,818 
City Attorney 185,000 185,000 187,323 2,323 
Finance 800,366 805,886 789,080 (16,806) 
Community Grants 269,763 269,763 269,763 0 
Law Enforcement 5,338,631 5,338,631 5,365,860 27,229 
Parking Enforcement 534,916 534,916 552,180 17,264 
Lifeguard 71,900 71,900 71,900 0 
Animal Services 23,500 23,500 23,500 0 
Public Works 2,417,429 2,442,029 2,471,868 29,839 
Community Development 695,330 702,830 739,122 36,292 
Recreation 847,398 847,398 843,337 (4,061) 
Museum 65,175 65,175 64,135 (1,040) 
Arts & Culture 46,152 46,152 46,152 0 

12,474,829 12,512,449 12,607,123 94,674 
Non-Departmental 1 Transfers 

ReseN3s 647,700 647,700 647,700 -

CIP 864,900 914,900 989,900 75,000 
Facilities 167,000 167,000 167,000 -
Other 590,425 590,425 590,425 0 

Expenditure Totals 14,744,854 14,832,474 15,002,148 169,674 

Staff has remained cautiously optimistic in preparing the mid-year estimate. All core General Fund 
revenues are performing relatively consistent with their budgeted amount. The attached budget 
amendment proposes to make adjustments for the identified increases, as well as the reductions. 
Proposed adjustments to other funds are presented in a second budget adjustment. 

3 



Staffing Changes 
This mid-year report includes increasing a half-time Assistant Planner position to a full-time position. 
The additional hours would enable the department to implement various action items included in the 
recently adopted General Plan update and the upcoming Climate Action Plan while maintaining 
efficient delivery of core services. If approved, the transition to full-time would become effective on 
March 1, 2015. The Fiscal Year 2014/15 cost is anticipated to be $11,800, while the estimated annual 
cost is anticipated to be $36,200. While the additional hours will increase General Fund expenditures, 
these costs are anticipated to be recovered through internal billings to the Green Building Fund and 
General Plan Update and Maintenance Fund; and also recovered through increased planning 
services. Funds for this increase, along with the related revenues have been included in the 
projected Fiscal Year 14/15 year-end estimate. 

In addition, this report includes reclassifying the Receptionist position in the City Manager Department 
to 50% Development Services Technician and 50% Receptionist. This change is in recognition of the 
new duties assumed by the City's receptionist. Those duties were previously the role of a 
Development Services Technician. Those essential duties include Planning Commission public 
noticing, agenda preparation, meeting minutes, and final permit correspondence to applicants and the 
Coastal Commission. Costs associated with this change this fiscal year can be paid within the 
existing Department budget. Future annual costs are estimated to be less than $5,000. 

Emergency and Contingency Reserve Funds 
The combined reserve fund balances are estimated to be $2.8 million at the end of the fiscal year. 
The Contingency Reserve Fund is estimated to be fully funded at $1.8 million, while the Emergency 
Reserve Fund is estimated to be 87% funded at just over $1 million. Both reserve funds are 
anticipated to be fully funded in Fiscal Year 2015/16, which is one year earlier than the initial Measure 
o Funding goals. 

Allocation of Estimated Fund Balance 
Staff is in the process of developing a plan to allocate the projected fund balance, while considering 
the long term cost projections associated with the changes in the PERS risk pool structures. Options 
will be presented to the Finance Advisory Committee in March, followed by a recommendation to 
Council as part of the Proposed Budget Study Sessions. 

Other Funds 

Equipment Fund: The Equipment Fund includes a $22,000 appropriation to purchase a replacement 
Police motorcycle that was damaged beyond repair from an on-duty collision. The Police Department 
is equipped with three motorcycles for enforcement and patrol activities. Since the collision, the 
department has been operating with only two motorcycles. Currently, the City is in litigation with the. 
insurance company to recover the cost of replacement. Funds for this purchase are anticipated to be 
reimbursed from a third party's insurance; however if these efforts are unsuccessful, there is a 
sufficient fund balance in the Equipment Fund to pay for the new motorcycle. The projected Fiscal 
Year 2014-15 ending Equipment Fund balance is anticipated to be $121,400 with reimbursement; 
however $99,400 without reimbursement. Any unreimbursed costs will be recovered through internal 
service fund charges in the forthcoming years. 

CIP Fund: The CIP budget was reduced to reflect the estimated amount of expenditures for FY 14/15. 
Any unexpended funds will be carried forward with their assigned projects into the next fiscal year. 

Successor Agency Fund: In the FY 14/15 Adopted Budget, it was projected that the Successor 
Agency would use all available revenues to fund recognized obligations. Due to repayment of several 
obligations, along with on-going negotiations for the Capitola Mall Improvement Project, there weren't 
sufficient obligations to request the full amount of Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Funds (RPTTF). 
The mid-year budget was reduced to reflect the approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules 
for this fiscal year and RPTTF disbursement patterns. 

4 -12-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

Staffing Changes 
This mid-year report includes increasing a half-time Assistant Planner position to a full-time position. 
The additional hours would enable the department to implement various action items included in the 
recently adopted General Plan update and the upcoming Climate Action Plan while maintaining 
efficient delivery of core services. If approved, the transition to full-time would become effective on 
March 1, 2015. The Fiscal Year 2014/15 cost is anticipated to be $11,800, while the estimated annual 
cost is anticipated to be $36,200. While the additional hours will increase General Fund expenditures, 
these costs are anticipated to be recovered through internal billings to the Green Building Fund and 
General Plan Update and Maintenance Fund; and also recovered through increased planning 
services. Funds for this increase, along with the related revenues have been included in the 
projected Fiscal Year 14/15 year-end estimate. 

In addition, this report includes reclassifying the Receptionist position in the City Manager Department 
to 50% Development Services Technician and 50% Receptionist. This change is in recognition of the 
new duties assumed by the City's receptionist. Those duties were previously the role of a 
Development Services Technician. Those essential duties include Planning Commission public 
noticing, agenda preparation, meeting minutes, and final permit correspondence to applicants and the 
Coastal Commission. Costs associated with this change this fiscal year can be paid within the 
existing Department budget. Future annual costs are estimated to be less than $5,000. 

Emergency and Contingency Reserve Funds 
The combined reserve fund balances are estimated to be $2.8 million at the end of the fiscal year. 
The Contingency Reserve Fund is estimated to be fully funded at $1.8 million, while the Emergency 
Reserve Fund is estimated to be 87% funded at just over $1 million. Both reserve funds are 
anticipated to be fully funded in Fiscal Year 2015/16, which is one year earlier than the initial Measure 
o Funding goals. 

Allocation of Estimated Fund Balance 
Staff is in the process of developing a plan to allocate the projected fund balance, while considering 
the long term cost projections associated with the changes in the PERS risk pool structures. Options 
will be presented to the Finance Advisory Committee in March, followed by a recommendation to 
Council as part of the Proposed Budget Study Sessions. 

Other Funds 

Equipment Fund: The Equipment Fund includes a $22,000 appropriation to purchase a replacement 
Police motorcycle that was damaged beyond repair from an on-duty collision. The Police Department 
is equipped with three motorcycles for enforcement and patrol activities. Since the collision, the 
department has been operating with only two motorcycles. Currently, the City is in litigation with the. 
insurance company to recover the cost of replacement. Funds for this purchase are anticipated to be 
reimbursed from a third party's insurance; however if these efforts are unsuccessful, there is a 
sufficient fund balance in the Equipment Fund to pay for the new motorcycle. The projected Fiscal 
Year 2014-15 ending Equipment Fund balance is anticipated to be $121,400 with reimbursement; 
however $99,400 without reimbursement. Any unreimbursed costs will be recovered through internal 
service fund charges in the forthcoming years. 

CIP Fund: The CIP budget was reduced to reflect the estimated amount of expenditures for FY 14/15. 
Any unexpended funds will be carried forward with their assigned projects into the next fiscal year. 

Successor Agency Fund: In the FY 14/15 Adopted Budget, it was projected that the Successor 
Agency would use all available revenues to fund recognized obligations. Due to repayment of several 
obligations, along with on-going negotiations for the Capitola Mall Improvement Project, there weren't 
sufficient obligations to request the full amount of Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Funds (RPTTF). 
The mid-year budget was reduced to reflect the approved Recognized Obligation Payment Schedules 
for this fiscal year and RPTTF disbursement patterns. 

4 



Attachments: 

1. Budget Adjustment Form - General Fund 
2. Budget Adjustment Form - Other Funds 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: ~ 

5 -13-

Item #: 9.A. Staff Report.pdf

Attachments: 

1. Budget Adjustment Form - General Fund 
2. Budget Adjustment Form - Other Funds 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director 

Reviewed and Forwarded 
By City Manager: ~ 

5 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-14-



City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Administrative D 
Council W 
FUNDtt , ..p ul1cGescrlptiOn .... :, . Inel'ease/Decrease,~ ',C' c .. 

1025 Facilities Reserve $ 83,500 
1040 Donations 10,000 
1200 Capital Improvements (232,000) 
1310 Gas Tax 73,404 
1311 Wharf 9,520 
1313 General Plan Update 15,842 
1315 Public Art Fee (10,000) 
1350 CDBG Grants 146,000 
2212 ISF - Equipment Replacement 22,000 
5501 Successor Aqency - RPTTF _(633,3001 
5552 Capitola Housinq Successor 31,759 

Other Funds under $1,000 each (455) 

Total Revenue $ -<483,730) 

1200 Capital Improvements $ (1,814,339) 
1310 Gas Tax (44,550) 
1311 Wharf Fund (11,450) 
1313 General Plan U1>..date 7,000 
1314 Green Buildinq Education Fund 5,000 
1315 Public Art Fee Fund 1,000 
1316 Parkin~ Reserve 15,000 
1320 Public Education (12,000) 
1321 BIA - CaQitola Village & Wharf 2,500 
1350 CDBG Grants 146,000 
1421 Pac Cove Park 113,235 
2211 ISF - Information Technoloqy (1,418) 
2212 ISF - Equipment Replacement 22,000 
2213 ISF - Self-insurance 2,600 
2216 ISF - Compensated Absences 5,000 
5501 Successor Aqency - RPTTF (351,483) 

Other Funds under $1 ,obo each 761 

Total Expenditures (1,915,144) 
Net Adjustment 1,431,414 

Comments: Adjust the FY14-15 Budget based on information contained in the 
FY 2014-15 Mid Year Budget Financial Report 

DepartmentHeadA~pp~r~o~v~al~ ________________________________________ __ 

City Manager Approv..:...;a=I ____________________________________________ _ 

Council date 2/21/2015 

2/20/20152:12 PM 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\MidYear Staff Report_ GF _Attachment I.xlsx 1 BA Non-GF Funds 

-15-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 1.pdfCity of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Administrative D 
Council W 
FUND:fI:·· ··.···Pu[laDescrjpfiOn ... Im~~ease/Decrease<~ .. c -

.. 

1025 Facilities Reserve $ 83,500 
1040 Donations 10,000 
1200 Capital Improvements (232,000) 
1310 Gas Tax 73,404 
1311 Wharf 9,520 
1313 General Plan Update 15,842 
1315 Public Art Fee (10,000) 
1350 CDBG Grants 146,000 
2212 ISF - Equipment Replacement 22,000 
5501 Successor Agency - RPTIF (633,300) 
5552 Capitola Housing Successor 31,759 

Other Funds under $1,000 each (455) 

Total Revenue $ (483,730) 

1200 Capital Improvements $ (1,814,339) 
1310 Gas Tax (44,550) 
1311 Wharf Fund (11,450) 
1313 General Plan UQdate 7,000 
1314 Green BuildinQ Education Fund 5,000 
1315 Public Art Fee Fund 1,000 
1316 Parkin-.9. Reserve 15,000 
1320 Public Education (12,000) 
1321 BIA - Capitola Village & Wharf 2,500 
1350 CDBG Grants 146,000 
1421 Pac Cove Park 113,235 
2211 ISF - Information Technology (1,418) 
2212 ISF - Equipment Replacement 22,000 
2213 ISF - Self-insurance 2,600 
2216 ISF - Compensated Absences 5,000 
5501 Successor AQency - RPTIF (351,483) 

Other Funds under $1,000 each 761 

Total Expenditures (1,915,144) 
Net Adjustment 1,431,414 

Comments: Adjust the FY14-15 Budget based on information contained in the 
FY 2014-15 Mid Year Budget Financial Report 

DepartmentHeadA~pp~r~o~v~al~ ________________________________________ __ 

City Manager Approv..:...;a::,:I ________________________________ _ 

Council date 2/21/2015 

2/20/20152:12 PM 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\MidYear Staff Report_ GF _Attachment I.xlsx 1 BA Non-GF Funds 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-16-



City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Administrative D 
Council W 
AeOcount# ~, ... : -

A6countDescr~tron ·0 
'c IncreaselDecm3c:lse o~ 

----

1 000-x-311 0 Property Tax 142000 
1000-x-3130 Sales Tax (3,146) 
1000-x-3140 Documentary Transfer Tax 33200 
1000-x-3150 Business License Tax -
1000-x-3160 Franchise Fees -
1000-x-3170 TOT 800 
1000-x-3200 Licenses and Permits (5000) 
1000-x-33xx Interqovernmental Revenues 66316 
1000-x-34xx Charqes for Services 59500 
1000-x-35xx Fines and Forfeitures -
1000-x-36xx Use of Money & PropertY -

1000-x-3700 Other Revenues (3,875) 
1000-x-39xx Other Financing Sources -

Total Revenue 289,795 

1 000-x-41 xxl42xx Personnel (68,937) 
1000-x-43xx Contract Services 148828 
1000-x-4400 Traininq/Memberships (945) 
1000-x-4450 Supplies 15728 
1000-x-4500 Grants & Subsidies -
1000-x-4650 Capital Outlay -
1000-x-4625 Internal Service Fund Charges -
1000-x-4900 Other Financinq Uses -
1000-x-4900 Other Financinq Uses - Measure 0 -
1000-x-4900 Other Financinq Uses - Reserves -
1000-x-4900 Other Financinq Uses - Successor Agcy -
1 000-x-491 0 Transfers Out 75,000 

Total Expenditures 169,674 

Net Adjustment 120,121 

Comments: Adjust the FY14-15 Budget based on information contained in the 
FY 2014-15 Mid Year Budget Financial Report 

DepartmentHeadA.~p~pr~o~v~a~I __________________________________________ __ 

City Manager Appro..:.,:va::=..:I'----____________________________________________ _ 

Council date 2/25/2015 

212012015 2:07 PM 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\MidYear Staff Report_Other Funds_Attachment lI.xlsx 1 
General Fund - worksheet 

-17-

Item #: 9.A. Attach 2.pdfCity of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Administrative D 
Council W 
AeOcount# ~ 0 c 

~ . AccounfDescriptron ,-~ :~ 

Is Increase/Decrease o~ 
----

1 000-x-311 0 Property Tax 142000 
1000-x-3130 Sales Tax (3,146) 
1000-x-3140 Documentary Transfer Tax 33200 
1000-x-3150 Business License Tax -
1000-x-3160 Franchise Fees -
1000-x-3170 TOT 800 
1000-x-3200 Licenses and Permits (5000) 
1000-x-33xx Intergovernmental Revenues 66316 
1000-x-34xx Charges for Services 59500 
1000-x-35xx Fines and Forfeitures -
1000-x-36xx Use of Money & Property -

1000-x-3700 Other Revenues (3875) 
1000-x-39xx Other Financing Sources -

Total Revenue 289,795 

1 000-x-41 xxl42xx Personnel (68937) 
1000-x-43xx Contract Services 148,828 
1000-x-4400 TraininQ/Memberships (945) 
1000-x-4450 Supplies 15728 
1000-x-4500 Grants & Subsidies -
1000-x-4650 Capital Outla'l -
1000-x-4625 Internal Service Fund Charges -
1000-x-4900 Other FinancilJ.g Uses -
1000-x-4900 Other Financing Uses - Measure a -
1000-x-4900 Other Financing Uses - Reserves -
1000-x-4900 Other Financing Uses - Successor AgGY -
1 000-x-491 0 Transfers Out 75,000 

Total Expenditures 169,674 
Net Adjustment 120,121 

Comments: Adjust the FY14-15 Budget based on information contained in the 
FY 2014-15 Mid Year Budget Financial Report 

DepartmentHeadA.~p~pr~o~v~a~I __________________________________________ __ 

City Manager Appro.!..:va~I~ ____________________________________________ _ 

Council date 2/25/2015 

212012015 2:07 PM 
R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\MidYear Staff Report_Other Funds_Attachment Il.xlsx 1 
General Fund - worksheet 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-18-



FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2015 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM ANNUAL 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30,2013 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual 
Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30, 2013. (This agenda item was continued from the February 
11, 2015, City Council meeting.) 

BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, the City receives actuarial reports from the California Public 
Employee's Retirement System (CalPERS or PERS) that confirm the current year employer 
contribution rates, establish rates for the next fiscal year, and project rates for the next year. 

DISCUSSION: The PERS contribution rates typically fluctuate for many reasons, including investment 
gains and losses and unexpected changes to payroll. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2015-16, CalPERS 
implemented structural changes to the risk pools. These changes included expressing the annual 
employer contribution for the unfunded liability as a dollar amount, rather than a percentage; and 
allocating each pool's unfunded liability to individual plans based on the plan's total liability, rather than 
each plan's payroll costs. This change increased the City of Capitola's actuarially determined employer 
contribution rates by more than 4.5%. While the current memoranda of understanding (MOU's) indicate 
that City employees will bear the cost of this increase, the City and employee groups are meeting to 
review these rate increases. 

The City's contribution for Tier I and Tier II "Classic" employees is capped pursuant to existing MOU'S. 
The City's contribution rate for Tier I employees remains unchanged at 28.291 % for Safety and 
16.488% for Miscellaneous. The City's contribution rate for Tier II employees also remains unchanged 
at 23.291% and 11.488%, respectively. The Fiscal Year 2015/2016 calculated contribution rates for 
Classic Safety employees are 17.314% and 22.314% for Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This 
represents an increase of 5.44% points. The Fiscal Year 2015/2016 contribution rates for Classic 
Miscellaneous employees are 16.965% and 21.965% for Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This 
represents an increase of 6.673% points over the existing rate. Due to the new PERS model 
expressing a portion of the rate as a dollar amount, rather than a fixed percentage, the allocated portion 
may vary based on updated salary projections. It is estimated that this variance should not be more 
than .50% percentage points. Under the current Mou language, this rate increase would decrease 
employee take-home pay. 

Based on the most recent actuary report, it is projected that Classic employee PERS Safety .and 
Miscellaneous rates for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 will increase by 4.49% points and 2.571% points, 
respectively. The actual rates will be provided in next year's Actuarial Valuation Reports. 

Assembly Bill 340, the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), applies to new 
employees who were not previously members of the PERS reciprocal system. For PEPRA plans, the 
employee rates remain unchanged through June 30, 2016 at 11.50% for Safety employees and 6.25% 
for Miscellaneous employees, while the employer rates are 11.50% and 6.237%, respectively. There 
were no employees enrolled in the Capitola Safety PEPRA plan, therefore a new actuarial report was 
not prepared. All PEPRA safety rates reference the Benefit and Contribution Rates that became 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\PERS annual report June 30 2013 _stf.docx -19-

Item #: 9.B. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2015 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

THE CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM ANNUAL 
ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30,2013 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual 
Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30, 2013. (This agenda item was continued from the February 
11, 2015, City Council meeting.) 

BACKGROUND: On an annual basis, the City receives actuarial reports from the California Public 
Employee's Retirement System (CalPERS or PERS) that confirm the current year employer 
contribution rates, establish rates for the next fiscal year, and project rates for the next year. 

DISCUSSION: The PERS contribution rates typically fluctuate for many reasons, including investment 
gains and losses and unexpected changes to payroll. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2015-16, CalPERS 
implemented structural changes to the risk pools. These changes included expressing the annual 
employer contribution for the unfunded liability as a dollar amount, rather than a percentage; and 
allocating each pool's unfunded liability to individual plans based on the plan's total liability, rather than 
each plan's payroll costs. This change increased the City of Capitola's actuarially determined employer 
contribution rates by more than 4.5%. While the current memoranda of understanding (MOU's) indicate 
that City employees will bear the cost of this increase, the City and employee groups are meeting to 
review these rate increases. 

The City's contribution for Tier I and Tier II "Classic" employees is capped pursuant to existing MOU'S. 
The City's contribution rate for Tier I employees remains unchanged at 28.291 % for Safety and 
16.488% for Miscellaneous. The City's contribution rate for Tier II employees also remains unchanged 
at 23.291% and 11.488%, respectively. The Fiscal Year 2015/2016 calculated contribution rates for 
Classic Safety employees are 17.314% and 22.314% for Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This 
represents an increase of 5.44% points. The Fiscal Year 2015/2016 contribution rates for Classic 
Miscellaneous employees are 16.965% and 21.965% for Tier I and Tier II employees, respectively. This 
represents an increase of 6.673% points over the existing rate. Due to the new PERS model 
expressing a portion of the rate as a dollar amount, rather than a fixed percentage, the allocated portion 
may vary based on updated salary projections. It is estimated that this variance should not be more 
than .50% percentage points. Under the current Mou language, this rate increase would decrease 
employee take-home pay. 

Based on the most recent actuary report, it is projected that Classic employee PERS Safety .and 
Miscellaneous rates for Fiscal Year 2016/2017 will increase by 4.49% points and 2.571% points, 
respectively. The actual rates will be provided in next year's Actuarial Valuation Reports. 

Assembly Bill 340, the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), applies to new 
employees who were not previously members of the PERS reciprocal system. For PEPRA plans, the 
employee rates remain unchanged through June 30, 2016 at 11.50% for Safety employees and 6.25% 
for Miscellaneous employees, while the employer rates are 11.50% and 6.237%, respectively. There 
were no employees enrolled in the Capitola Safety PEPRA plan, therefore a new actuarial report was 
not prepared. All PEPRA safety rates reference the Benefit and Contribution Rates that became 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\20l5 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\PERS annual report June 30 2013 _stf.docx 



AGENDA STAFF REPORT - FEBRUARY 25,2015 
PERS ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 

effective on January 1, 2013. 

Classie-Tier I Classic -Tier II PEPRA 

Employee 
.... 

Contribution Safety Mise Safety .. Mise Safety Mise 
... 

FY05/06 0.0% 0.0% c"" -;c: .,>'y. -~.q-:--~; 

FY06/07 0.0% 0.0% 
.. ' -SlJ ~i_ 

.--"~---
.... ~'--'Y~ 

c_,; --

FY07/08 1.623% 0.152% '-.c: --~< 
:;-

_~;:_-;c: 
---.- ... -

Dec 30. - July 2008 1.623% 3.594% --c~_ ;J{;':~_. "' --,,-, < ,';< .. - :.~.-.--"-~-':: 

FY08/09 1.849% 3.576% ·-.~c_ ;~cr 
c- k'c-.---, 

_ -, IH". -
. -

--"'--
FY09/10 1.688% 3.663% _2" .:..- -~ -- - -; k--~': ,'.; 

FY10/11 2.332% 
FY11/12 7.801% 
FY12/13 8.449% 
FY13/14 10.021% 
FY14/15 11.874% 
FY15/16 17.314% 

Contrlbution Rates (Class i_c) 

Safety 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

Miscellaneous 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

4.128% ·-":.c-- •• , 

7.511% ,-e;-::,_ 

8.267% 13.449% 
9.091% 15.021% 
10.292% 16.874% 
16.965% 22.314% 

,2015-16:_. __ 
PERS-'- Cap 

.Revised Rates 

32.839% 
9.000% 
2.956% 
0.810% 

45.605% 

2015-16 
PERS 
Rates 

22.975% 
8.000% 
1.838% 
0.640% 

33.453% 

16.955% 
9.000% 
1.526% 
0.810% 

28.291% 

Cap 
Revised 
8.409% 
7.000% 
0.589% 
0.490% 

16.488% 

-i{~, 
,-

. .-,- --:- I':C~~~: - -:_-'-'.>-
---c-c __ 

- ·l',Ce: ~-'-~ :. >-
13.267% 11.50% 6.25% 
14.091% 11.50% 6.25% 
15.292% 11.50% 6.25% 
21.965% 11.50% 6.25% 

"i~.rl :2!ier II 
__ Employe~, ',-ElTlploye~.-;
Contribution - .. ContributiQO 

17.314% 22.314% 

Tier I Tier II 
Employee Employee 

Contribution Contribution 

16.965% 21.965% 

FISCAL IMPACT: Under the current MOU's, all increases related to the Classic PERS rates will be 
assumed by employees. If there are proposed changes to employee contracts that would result in a 
fiscal impact, that information will be brought forward to Council at that time. The PEPRA rates remain 
relatively unchanged from Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 

ATTACHMENTS: (The following attachments are available at City Hall) 
1. CalPERS Safety Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
2. CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
3. CalPERS PEPRA Misc. Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
4. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Safety Members, Effective January 1, 2013. 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah, Finance Director 
Reviewed and FOrw~ 
By City Manager: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\PERS ~nual report June 30 2013 _stf.doc 

-20-

Item #: 9.B. Staff Report.pdf
AGENDA STAFF REPORT - FEBRUARY 25,2015 
PERS ANNUAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION REPORTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 

effective on January 1, 2013. 

Classic-Tier I Classic -Tier II PEPRA 

Employee 
.... 

Contribution Safety Misc Safety Misc Safety Mise 
... 

FY05/06 0.0% 0.0% .. - - --'~-
. ' .... _ ., c: ·';'"0 . -'-~.l;,:-'~,: 

FY06/07 0.0% 0.0% 
-- '- -c'\ ~i-. <~c.~ C,-; 

___ -,~:"~,t 
-- -' --

FY07/08 1.623% 0.152% .--~<. :<.--;': 
.- _. - 1.-.-·· --' 

Dec 30. - July 2008 1.623% 3.594% "-~. c]{;,:~ I·c.,-, .=;< ---~:.-

FY08/09 1.849% 3.576% -~~ - --.~cr ... 
.c-. Ik-c-,---, --; IH--. . -

~.:--: 

FY09/10 1.688% 3.663% ·._-•. 2" --~ 
-- -y .--~-: -

FY10/11 2.332% 4.128% .'---':,:--,-: .~,{~, 
.- - I-:c~~~: ---:_-, .. ,>-

FY11/12 7.801% 7.511% ICc: _. 
---. .----

-' 
-l'>-=., ~-'-~ :----

FY12/13 8.449% 
FY13/14 10.021% 
FY14/15 11.874% 
FY15/16 17.314% 

Contrlbution Rates (Classi,c) 

Safety 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

Miscellaneous 
Employer 
Employee 
EPMC (a) 
EPMC (b) 

Total 

8.267% 13.449% 
9.091% 15.021% 
10.292% 16.874% 
16.965% 22.314% 

,2015-16:,_,- _ 
PERS-'- Cap 

,Revised Rates 

32.839% 
9.000% 
2.956% 
0.810% 

45.605% 

2015-16 
PERS 
Rates 

22.975% 
8.000% 
1.838% 
0.640% 

33.453% 

16.955% 
9.000% 
1.526% 
0.810% 

28.291% 

Cap 
Revised 
8.409% 
7.000% 
0.589% 
0.490% 

16.488% 

13.267% 11.50% 6.25% 
14.091% 11.50% 6.25% 
15.292% 11.50% 6.25% 
21.965% 11.50% 6.25% 

"i~r_1 :2Iier II 
__ Employe~- '.-ElTlploye~.-;
Contribution - .. ContributiQO 

17.314% 22.314% 

Tier I Tier II 
Employee Employee 

Contribution Contribution 

16.965% 21.965% 

FISCAL IMPACT: Under the current MOU's, all increases related to the Classic PERS rates will be 
assumed by employees. If there are proposed changes to employee contracts that would result in a 
fiscal impact, that information will be brought forward to Council at that time. The PEPRA rates remain 
relatively unchanged from Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 

ATTACHMENTS: (The following attachments are available at City Hall) 
1. CalPERS Safety Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
2. CalPERS Miscellaneous Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
3. CalPERS PEPRA Misc. Plan of the City of Capitola Actuarial Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013; 
4. CalPERS Benefit and Contribution Rates for New Safety Members, Effective January 1, 2013. 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah, Finance Director 
Reviewed and FOrw~ 
By City Manager: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\PERS ~nual report June 30 2013_stf.doc 



A 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS 10: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30, 2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
18.524% 
19.6% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$ 330,519 
$ 395,101 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 

-21-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

A 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS 10: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30, 2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
18.524% 
19.6% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$ 330,519 
$ 395,101 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 



SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios", under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other than cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CaIPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana/ysisHsection of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 

-22-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios", under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other than cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expectedl etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CaIPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana/ysisHsection of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 



SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. . 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive Summary" 
section and in Appendix A, "Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions" of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

IL~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 

-23-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. . 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive Summary" 
section and in Appendix A, "Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions" of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

IL~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 



-24-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



A 
CalPERS 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
SAFETY PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 3D, 2016 

-25-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

A 
CalPERS 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
SAFETY PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 3D, 2016 



-26-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 

-27-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 



:.:J 

-28-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

:.:J 



CALI FOHN 1./\. PH nLl.e EJvIPLOYEfi:S' RE'I'lllEM.E:N'r ;:; YS'·r.EM 

. Plan Specific Information 
for the 

SAFETY PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 877) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 435109 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 418824 REPORT ID: 79952 

-29-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALI FOHN 1./\. PH nLl.e EJvIPLOYEfi:S' RE'I'lllEM.E:N'r ;:; YS'·r.EM 

. Plan Specific Information 
for the 

SAFETY PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 877) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 435109 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 418824 REPORT ID: 79952 



-30-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 

-31-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 



-32-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CaIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your SAFETY PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that the 
assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for CaIPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 

-33-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CaIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your SAFETY PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial 
principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that the 
assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for CaIPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 1 



-34-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

-35-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 



-36-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CIlY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the SAFETY PLAN of the CITY OF 
CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This actuarial valuation was 
used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17,2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the "Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios'subsection of the ''Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 calPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategiC asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with a 5-year 
ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety R.isk Pool Page 5 

-37-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CIlY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the SAFETY PLAN of the CITY OF 
CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This actuarial valuation was 
used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17,2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the "Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios'subsection of the ''Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 calPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with a 5-year 
ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety R.isk Pool Page 5 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This section 1 report for the SAFETY PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
• Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 

30,2016; 
• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 

interested parties; and 
• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

• A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6 

-38-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This section 1 report for the SAFETY PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' 
Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
• Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 

30,2016; 
• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 

interested parties; and 
• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

• A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 6 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 
Plan's Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 
Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 1 

17.453% 
9.428% 

0.968% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

27.849% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

17.557% 
13.896%2 

0.967% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

32.420% 

18.524% 
27,543 

318,781 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payrolO plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal year, beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyond; only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid 

lThe results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is 13.896 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 7 

-39-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 
Plan's Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 
Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2014-151 

17.453% 
9.428% 

0.968% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

27.849% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

17.557% 
13.896%2 

0.967% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

32.420% 

18.524% 
27,543 

318,781 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payrolO plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal year, beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyond; only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid 

lThe results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is 13.896 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 7 



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 301 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

$ 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

36/454/061 $ 37/412/474 

30/630/882 31/655/484 

22/588/206 24/540/509 

8/0421676 7/1141975 

73.7% 77.5% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
availablel including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-141 namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

19.6% 
395)01 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pooll that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next yearl and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore l the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 

-40-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 301 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

$ 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

36/454/061 $ 37/412/474 

30/630/882 31/655/484 

22/588/206 24/540/509 

8/0421676 7/1141975 

73.7% 77.5% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
availablel including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-141 namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

19.6% 
395)01 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pooll that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next yearl and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore l the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 8 



• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 

-41-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 



-42-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UAL due to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss 
10. Pool's 2013 Other (Gain)/Loss 
11. Plan's Share of Pool's Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (9) 
12. Plan's Share of Pool's Other (Gain)/Loss [(1)]/[(4)] * (10) 

13. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(11)+(12)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$. 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

31,655,484 
0 
0 

12,307,135,447 
461,094,417 

817,039 
1,391,710,886 

3,719,244 

1,285,245,280 

(15,159,479) 
3,434,723 

(38,992) 
7,114,975 

31,655,484 
7,114,975 

24,540,509 

Page 11 

-43-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UAL due to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss 
10. Pool's 2013 Other (Gain)/Loss 
11. Plan's Share of Pool's Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (9) 
12. Plan's Share of Pool's Other (Gain)/Loss [(1)]/[(4)] * (10) 

13. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(11)+(12)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$. 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

31,655,484 
0 
0 

12,307,135,447 
461,094,417 

817,039 
1,391,710,886 

3,719,244 

1,285,245,280 

(15,159,479) 
3,434,723 

(38,992) 
7,114,975 

31,655,484 
7,114,975 

24,540,509 

Page 11 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 30, 2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

Date 
Reason for Base Established 

SIDE FUN'j)··.· .. · .... ·.··········.·····m ................. m········FJ6/30/i3····· 
······SHj.i:-i~j~··OF·PRE=2oi"3·POOL UAL .m·······06}3·0/i"3 
:::A$:$:IT.(G.Ai~)EQ$.$::::::··:::::::::::.::::::~::Q§Z~:QLi~.:: .. 

....... ~Q~:f\??EI(G.f\!.~)!~Q~? ........... m ••••••••••••••• .Q§gQl!~ .... . 
TOTAL 

Amorti
zation 
Period 

10 
22 
30 
30 

Amounts for Fiscal 2015-16 
Expected Expected ........... ······Scheduied·· ····Paymenia;;· 

Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment for Percentage of 
.... ~L~.QI!~ .... ~Q.!.~.:.!.4....... 6/30 / ~4. ...... m........~Q.14-15~L~QI!§............ .. ~!l.!§.:.!~L ...................... p..~y.r~!.I .. . 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.000% 
··:::i~;:i.I2;:?41::::: :::::::$i?'Q·;I?l:::::::::]~;§?I:i.i.i~~::··:::::::i?~:?;~I~:: ::::::::$.~;§§?;$iI::::::.:i??~;~~?:$:::::::n;:~?§~~: ... . 

.l~.11~.11Z?.2 ........................................... .$..Q ....... m ..... .$..~.I§~.?12?Z.......... ..m$..Q ..................... .l~{~.§~{.???....... . .... m ...... ~.??&?§ ............ ?:.~1Z.~9 ............. . 
. ... J.(2.~.I.~.~.?}.... .. . .............. .$..Q ........................... ${1!,~!§)..... . ........................ $Q.......m ... ~(1:5..,Q§.Q).... . ................ l(§~11 ........ (Q.:.Q.?ZO!o) 

$7 ,114,~ 75 $170,.173 $7,fl72,1.~.~ ........................ $232,313$!.I.!.~.!!Z.Q4.._ ........... ~~~QI.~!.!:1_.....1..~.~~.~~~!.~ .. 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined eXisting amortization bases prior to June 30, 2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 12 

-44-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 30, 2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

Date 
Reason for Base Established SIDE···F·UN'[j·····H .. _M •• H.H •• __ •• M ••••••••••••••• H ••••••••• M •• _ "0'6/3'071'3'-' 

::~:8A:~(QF.:~~~~?':Q:i.IE~Q~!l.A:h :.:::::~::.Q§2~~9713 
. _.A??IT.JG/:\r.r:-DAQ?? .... _ 06/30/13 
... ~Q~:A??EI(G.A!.~)!~Q$.~::::::::::::::::·66j3~Q/i3--· 

TOTAL 

Amorti
zation 

........ ~~r.i.~.~ 
10 
22 

Amounts for Fiscal 2015-16 
Expected Expected ................................................. ········· .. ·····Scheduied· .. ········_·· .. Paymentas········ 

Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment for Percentage of 
.... ~Q.!.~.:.!.4. ..... _ 6/30/14 .. ~Q_14-15~L~C}I!§. .. _ ....... .. ?015-16 _ ................. p._~y.r~!.I. 

$0 $0 ............ _ ... -.................... $ ....... 3 ........ , .... 8 ......... 2 ........ -.1 .. ·_.-, ... ·.7 .. · .. · .. · ... : .. ·.· .. ·.8.0_ .. ·_.:· .. ·.· .. · .. -__ ::: $0 $0 ......... --.... · .. -$0... ___ .Q~g.QQ"!9 
::::~$.~;:n2;:?41::::: :::::::$i?'Q';I?I::::::::i?~:?;~i~:: ::::::::$.~;§.§?;$I?:::::::.:i??~;~~i.:$:::: .. g:.27§'Y9 __ .. __ 

... ..... !i..I.~"Q/.!~ 

30 ........ _ ... _ .... __ ....... .1},1~.1,Z?.~._ ......................................... ,$.,Q .... _ ._ ....... l3..,§~.?,~?Z .... "'... . ... $..Q .. " .................. ..$.~{~.§~{.???....... . .... ..$..22&?§ .. _ ... _ ..... ?_:.~1Z.'Y9_ .......................... . 
30 ..... _ .. J.(~.~.,~~.?} ___ . .. . .... _ .... $0 ................... ${1!,~!~)".... . ........................ $Q .... ".... .... _$.(1:5..,Q§Q2.... . ......... _ ...... l(f5.~.11 ....... _(Q.:Q.?ZO!o1 ............ _ .. . 

..... .... _. $7 ~114,~ 75 $170;_173"'" $7,fl72,1_~.~ .. _." $232,313$!.I.Z~.~!Z.Q4. __ .. ......... ~~~QI.~!,,~_"'...1._~.~~.~~~!.~ 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined eXisting amortization bases prior to June 30, 2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 12 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $7,791,704 as of June 30, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $19,704,809. . 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Level Rate 

Period 
2015-16 Total Total Savings Payment Payments Interest 

25 $ 514,988 $ 18,776,084 $ 10,984,380 $ 928,725 
20 $ 588,316 $ 15,808,271 $ 8,016,567 $ 3,896,538 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 13 

-45-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $7,791,704 as of June 30, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $19,704,809. . 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Level Rate 

Period 
2015-16 Total Total Savings Payment Payments Interest 

25 $ 514,988 $ 18,776,084 $ 10,984,380 $ 928,725 
20 $ 588,316 $ 15,808,271 $ 8,016,567 $ 3,896,538 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 13 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30/ 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liability/ the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assets, plan's share of the pool's unfunded liability, funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation Accrued Share of Pool's Plan's Share of Funded Annual 
Date Liability Market Value of Pool's Unfunded Ratio Covered 

(AL) Assets (MVA) Liability Payroll 

06/30/2011 $ 28/146/569 $ 22,212/634 $ 5/933,935 78.9% $ 2/076,967 
06/30/2012 30,630,882 22/588,206 8,042,676 73.7% 2,130,400 
06/30/2013 31,655/484 24,540,509 7,114/975 77.5% 2,176,546 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate for 3% @ 50 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 

a) FAC 1 
Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 

26.438% 

0.968% 
27.406% 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

26.543% 

0.967% 
27.510% 

Page 14 

-46-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liability, the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assets, plan's share of the pool's unfunded liability, funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation Accrued Share of Pool's Plan's Share of Funded Annual 
Date Liability Market Value of Pool's Unfunded Ratio Covered 

(AL) Assets (MVA) Liability Payroll 

06/30/2011 $ 28,146,569 $ 22,212,634 $ 5,933,935 78.9% $ 2,076,967 
06/30/2012 30,630,882 22,588,206 8,042,676 73.7% 2,130,400 
06/30/2013 31,655,484 24,540,509 7,114,975 77.5% 2,176,546 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate for 3% @ 50 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 

a) FAC 1 
Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 

26.438% 

0.968% 
27.406% 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

26.543% 

0.967% 
27.510% 

Page 14 



VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

-47-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 



-48-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = 1. / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 30, 2013 

24,540,509 

2,176,546 

11.3 

31,655,484 

14.5 

Page 17 

-49-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF TH E CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratio, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = 1. / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 30, 2013 

24,540,509 

2,176,546 

11.3 

31,655,484 

14.5 

Page 17 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.gov 
@-docs/about/pubsfemployer/actuarial-assumptions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected'Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 18.524% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 
UAL$ $ 330,519 $ 395,101 $ 463,262 $ 535,156 $ 610,946 $ 626,817 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17,2013 CalPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning of the fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

19.6% 
$ 395,101 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
1.1% 

$ 64,582 

Page 18 

-50-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.gov 
@-docs/about/pubsfemployer/actuarial-assumptions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected'Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 18.524% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 19.6% 
UAL$ $ 330,519 $ 395,101 $ 463,262 $ 535,156 $ 610,946 $ 626,817 

I 
In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17, 2013 CalPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning of the fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

19.6% 
$ 395,101 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
1.1% 

$ 64,582 

Page 18 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2014 through June 30,2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 75th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. . 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

Return Scenario UAL Contribution 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 between 2016-17 
and 2019-20 

-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 514,364 $ 688,440 $ 917,654 $ 522,553 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 484520 $ 600 326 $ 744188 $ 349087 
7.5% $ 463262 $ 535156 $ 610 946 $ 215845 

12.0%(75th percentile) $ 442,902 $ 470,872 $ 475,507 $ 80,406 
18.9%(95th percentile) $ 411,676 $0 $0 $ (395,101) 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 19.6% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 
As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 

(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 25.1% 18.5% 13.4% 
Accrued Liability $ 35,821,655 $ 31,655,484 $ 28,212,438 
Unfunded Accrued Liability $ 1128U46 $ 7114975 $ 3,671,929 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 19 

-51-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July I, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 75th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. . 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

Return Scenario UAL Contribution 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 between 2016-17 
and 2019-20 

-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 514,364 $ 688,440 $ 917,654 $ 522,553 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 484520 $ 600 326 $ 744188 $ 349087 
7.5% $ 463262 $ 535156 $ 610 946 $ 215845 

12.0%(75th percentile) $ 442,902 $ 470,872 $ 475,507 $ 80,406 
18.9%(95th percentile) $ 411,676 $0 $0 $ (395,101) 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 19.6% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 
As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 

(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 25.1% 18.5% 13.4% 
Accrued Liability $ 35,821,655 $ 31,655,484 $ 28,212,438 
Unfunded Accrued Liability $ 1128U46 $ 7114975 $ 3,671,929 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 19 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liability1 (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2011 $ 41,603,891 $ 22,212,634 $ 19,391,257 53.4% $ 4.82% 
06/30/2012 58,563,693 22,588,206 35,975,487 38.6% 2.98% 
06/30/2013 53,187)85 24,540,509 28,646,876 46.1% 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and PrinCipal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 20 

-52-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liability1 (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2011 $ 41,603,891 $ 22,212,634 $ 19,391,257 53.4% $ 4.82% 
06/30/2012 58,563,693 22,588,206 35,975,487 38.6% 2.98% 
06/30/2013 53,187)85 24,540,509 28,646,876 46.1% 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and PrinCipal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 20 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes 

Number of Members 

Active 

Transferred 

Separated 

Retired 

.. 
• One Year Final Compensation 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

$ 2,327,945 $ 2,378,371 

21 21 

19 17 

10 12 

30 30 

Page 21 

-53-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes 

Number of Members 

Active 

Transferred 

Separated 

Retired 

.. 
• One Year Final Compensation 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

$ 2,327,945 $ 2,378,371 

21 21 

19 17 

10 12 

30 30 

Page 21 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Safety Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under GASB 
27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually required 
contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between contributions 
required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 2015 to June 
30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your unadjusted 
contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 18.524 percent of payroll and an 
unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $330,519. In order to calculate the dollar value of the 
contractually required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this 
normal cost contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing 
changes or contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that 
was actually paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of 
$330,519. However, if this contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually 
required contributions is equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are 
responsible for determining the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in 
dollars and the percentage of that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding 
years is to be disclosed under GASB 27. 

A summary of prinCipal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 22 

-54-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Safety Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under GASB 
27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually required 
contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between contributions 
required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 2015 to June 
30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your unadjusted 
contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 18.524 percent of payroll and an 
unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $330,519. In order to calculate the dollar value of the 
contractually required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this 
normal cost contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing 
changes or contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that 
was actually paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of 
$330,519. However, if this contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually 
required contributions is equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are 
responsible for determining the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in 
dollars and the percentage of that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding 
years is to be disclosed under GASB 27. 

A summary of prinCipal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool Page 22 



-55-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



-56-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf



SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

r 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Contract package 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 
Social Security Coverage 
Full/Modified 

Final Average Compensation Period 

Sick Leave Credit 

Non-Industrial Disability 

Industrial Disability 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level 
Special 
Alternate (firefighters) 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) 

COLA 

CalPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Receiving Active 
Police 

3.0% @ 50 
no 
full 

12 mos. 

yes 

standard 

yes 

yes 
level 2 

yes 
no 

$500 $500 
no no 

2% 2% 

Page 25 

-57-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE SAFETY PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

r 
Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Contract package 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 
Social Security Coverage 
Full/Modified 

Final Average Compensation Period 

Sick Leave Credit 

Non-Industrial Disability 

Industrial Disability 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level 
Special 
Alternate (firefighters) 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) 

COLA 

CalPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 
Rate Plan belonging to the Safety Risk Pool 

Receiving Active 
Police 

3.0% @ 50 
no 
full 

12 mos. 

yes 

standard 

yes 

yes 
level 2 

yes 
no 

$500 $500 
no no 

2% 2% 

Page 25 



CALIFORNIA PC:ULIC EIV{PLOYE.ES' R.E'rIREME1"f'l' SYS'fEM 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 

-58-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 1.pdf

CALIFORNIA PC:ULIC EIV{PLOYE.ES' R.E'rIREME1"f'l' SYS'fEM 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 



A. 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CalPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30,2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
9.671% 
10.1% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$ 386,347 
$ 441,370 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 

-59-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

A. 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CalPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30,2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
9.671% 
10.1% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$ 386,347 
$ 441,370 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 



SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Contract package 

Receiving 
Active Active Active Active 
Misc Misc Misc Misc 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 2.0% @55 2.0% @55 2.5% @ 55 2.5% @ 55 
Social Security Coverage yes no yes no 
Full/Modified modified full modified full 

Final Average Compensation Period 12 mos. 12 mos. 12 mos. 12 mos. 

Sick Leave Credit yes yes yes yes 

Non-Industrial Disability standard standard standard standard 

Industrial Disability no no no no 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W yes yes yes yes 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level no level 2 no level 2 
Special no no no no 
Alternate (firefighters) no no no no 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) no no no no no 

COLA 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 

CalPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 Page 25 
Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

-60-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Contract package 

Receiving 
Active Active Active Active 
Misc Misc Misc Misc 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 2.0% @55 2.0% @55 2.5% @ 55 2.5% @ 55 
Social Security Coverage yes no yes no 
Full/Modified modified full modified full 

Final Average Compensation Period 12 mos. 12 mos. 12 mos. 12 mos. 

Sick Leave Credit yes yes yes yes 

Non-Industrial Disability standard standard standard standard 

Industrial Disability no no no no 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W yes yes yes yes 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level no level 2 no level 2 
Special no no no no 
Alternate (firefighters) no no no no 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum $500 $500 $500 $500 $500 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) no no no no no 

COLA 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 

CalPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 Page 25 
Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 



C!',LI FORNI A PUBLIC EM PLOYEES' R.E'rI R EM.EN'f SYSTEM 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 

-61-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

C!',LI FORNI A PC HLI C EM PLOYEES' R.E'rI R EM.EN'f S. YSTE M 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 



MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios", under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other thEm cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana~sis//section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits· as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 

-62-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios", under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other thEm cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana~sis//section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits· as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 



MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive Summary" 
section and in Appendix A, "Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions" of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). . 

Sincerely, 

JL-~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 

-63-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive Summary" 
section and in Appendix A, "Statement of Actuarial Data, Methods and Assumptions" of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). . 

Sincerely, 

JL-~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 



-64-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



.. ~ 
CalPERS 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 

-65-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

.. ~ 
CalPERS 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 



-66-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 

-67-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 



-68-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



C.ALIFOH.NIA PUB.LIC .ElvlPL{)YEES' RE:TIRE1\lENT SYSTErv! 

Plan Specific Information 
for the 

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS IO: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 876) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 434875 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 420055 REPORT ID: 78237 

-69-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

C.ALIFOH.NIA PUB.LIC .ElvlPL{)YEES' RE:TIRE1\lENT SYSTErv! 

Plan Specific Information 
for the 

MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS IO: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 876) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 434875 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 420055 REPORT ID: 78237 



-70-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

5 INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 

-71-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

5 INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 



-72-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with (aIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plein belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your MISCELLANEOUS PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally accepted 
actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that 
the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the prinCiples and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for (alPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. ' 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 1 

-73-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with (aIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plein belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your MISCELLANEOUS PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally accepted 
actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, and that 
the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date of this 
valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in the 
California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the prinCiples and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for (alPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. ' 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 1 



-74-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

o PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

-75-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

o PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 



-76-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This actuarial 
valuation was used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17/2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30/ 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates/ CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios' subsection of the "Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1/ 2013/ the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with as-year 
ramp-up/ramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 5 

-77-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This actuarial 
valuation was used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17/2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30/ 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates/ CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios' subsection of the "Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1/ 2013/ the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with as-year 
ramp-up/ramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 5 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

'1 
This section 1 report for the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 
30,2016; 

• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 
interested parties; and 

• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

• A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 6 

-78-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

'1 
This section 1 report for the MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public 
Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 
30,2016; 

• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 
interested parties; and 

• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GAS B) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

• A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 6 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 
Plan's Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 
Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2014-151 

294,207 
206,335 

18,719 
o 

36,227 
555,488 

3,307,177 

8.896% 
6.239% 

0.566% 
0.000% 
1.095% 

16.796% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

288,414 
386,3472 

19,213 
o 
o 

693,974 

3,180,918 

9.067% 
12.145%2 

0.604% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

21.816% 

9.671% 
32,196 

372,626 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Uability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal yea", beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyon~ only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid. 

IThe results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is 12.145 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 7 

-79-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 
Plan's Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 
Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

a) FAC 1 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2014-151 

294,207 
206,335 

18,719 
o 

36,227 
555,488 

3,307,177 

8.896% 
6.239% 

0.566% 
0.000% 
1.095% 

16.796% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

288,414 
386,3472 

19,213 
o 
o 

693,974 

3,180,918 

9.067% 
12.145%2 

0.604% 
0.000% 
0.000% 

21.816% 

9.671% 
32,196 

372,626 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Uability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal yea", beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyon~ only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid. 

IThe results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is 12.145 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 7 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30/ 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

$ 
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

31/477/535 $ 32/370/186 

27/660/904 28/672/245 

19/624/525 21/554/138 

8/036/379 7)18/107 
71.0% 75.2% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
available, including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-14/ namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

10.1% 
441/370 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pool, that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next year/ and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore/ the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 8 

-80-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30/ 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

$ 
June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

31/477/535 $ 32/370/186 

27/660/904 28/672/245 

19/624/525 21/554/138 

8/036/379 7)18/107 
71.0% 75.2% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
available, including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-14/ namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

10.1% 
441/370 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pool, that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next year/ and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore/ the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 8 



• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 

-81-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 



-82-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UAL due to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)J/[(4)-(5)-(6)J * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss 
10. Pool's 2013 Other (Gain)/Loss 
11. Plan's Share of Pool's Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1)-(2)-(3)J/[(4)-(5)-(6)J * (9) 
12. Plan's Share of Pool's Other (Gain)/Loss [(l)J/[( 4)J * (10) 
13. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(11)+(12)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

28,672,245 
383,679 

0 
2,389,797,201 

83,573,887 
964,580 

319,504,744 
3,920,745 

231,453,080 

(2)13,098) 
2,840,235 

(26,552) 
7,118,107 

28,672,245 
7,118,107 

21,554,138 

Page 11 

-83-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UAL due to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)J/[(4)-(5)-(6)J * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 Investment & Asset (Gain)/Loss 
10. Pool's 2013 Other (Gain)/Loss 
11. Plan's Share of Pool's Asset (Gain)/Loss [(1)-(2)-(3)J/[(4)-(5)-(6)J * (9) 
12. Plan's Share of Pool's Other (Gain)/Loss [(l)J/[( 4)J * (10) 
13. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(11)+(12)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

28,672,245 
383,679 

0 
2,389,797,201 

83,573,887 
964,580 

319,504,744 
3,920,745 

231,453,080 

(2)13,098) 
2,840,235 

(26,552) 
7,118,107 

28,672,245 
7,118,107 

21,554,138 

Page 11 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 3D, 2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

........... .. ... ... ~!I,1~.l.!!I.~.!l .. f.()Efi.!lc,:~J.?,Q.!~:!(:i 
Amorti- Expected Expected Scheduled Payment as 

Date zation Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment for Percentage of 
.... ~eas.().n .f.()r: ... I:I..C!se .... J;!l.t.~.~!.i..!l.~.ed ... _ ........ P.~riod ........... (:iL~.QI.!.~........ . .. ?'.Q.!~:.!4....... 6/3£! 1.:1:4 .... . ................• ?,.Q.!4..:.!.~............. ...(:iI~.QI!~.............. . .......... ?,9..!.~.:.!.!:!.. . ................ P.!'!y.r()!I .. . 

..... ?~P.~.fY.~I?.................................................... .. Q§L?QU?... . ..... n...................................... .. $???..!..~?.~..... . .. p?!. .. ~??. . ................... l~??!..~.?.?. .................................. l3..§!..??? ............................... l3..§.~,g§...... . ........ l3..?,}~:! ................. ~.,.E~.'Y.~ ... . 

.... ?t!A~~QE ... P.g.~:?..9.~} .. .P.QQ.h .. Y.At ........... Q§I?.QU?. ...................... ?.!..... . ......... $~I.~.?Q,Z1.?......... . ........ 1.1..??,.~9.9 ............... J1J.Q?:!l??.:'I .......................... 1?Q.§&?1 .......................... 11.l.!.1J.,?Q? ............................ $..~Q~.I}.9Q ...................... ~.,.?~.?.'Y.~ ........ . . 

..... A?.$.f.CJGA~t:':l)I.~.9.$.$ ................................................. .Q~/3Q/13 ............ ?.Q...... . ..... 1?&1Q,?~.?.......... . ...... 1Q ................... J.?lPg??.?............. . .................... $..Q ........................... 1?1.?.??,.?..1Z...... . ....... $.1§,!§? ................. J .. ,.1.?..J"(o. .... . 

..... f'!Q.t:':l.:A$.?fL(GArf'!)!~Q.?? .... ........................... Q§I}QL!.?....... .. }O .......... $.(?~,.??..?.}..... . ..................... $..9....... .....J(?§l?.1~)... . ............................ $..Q ........... J(~Q!..9.?:!2.. ................ $.(1.??.} ......... (Q.,.9!1."(~1 .. . 
TOTAL ......... ..... .................................................................. .............................................. .... !j;,Z,.!.!~!.!Q!. ..... ~ 19 2,33 2.!JiZ!.4.52,§.52 .!j;,.?,4..~.!Q.~! .............. !j;,Z!!.~~!.4.??...... ... g;~~.!:!!~.4.?.....g~!4.~.?(~ .. 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined existing amortization bases prior to June 30, 2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board poiicy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 12 

-84-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 3D, 2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

........... .. ... ... ~!I,1~.l.!!I.~.!l .. f.()Efi.!lc,:~J.?,Q.!~:!(:; 
Amorti- Expected Expected Scheduled Payment as 

Date zation Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment for Percentage of 
Reason for Base Established Period 6/30/13 ... ?'.Q.!.~.:.!4....... 6/3Q/.l:4 ................... ?,.Q.!4.:!.~...... . .. (:;{~.QI!~........ 2015-16 ................. ~!'!y.r().!I 

.. ?ip.~IQN:p ... :::: .... :::: .... :·:·:::::............::Q§Z~:Ql.i.~:: ....... !..~ .................. :::::::::::$~?~;$.?~. $35,172 $375 ,988 $36,227 .... $?~_~,§.?~..········$37;3·14 1.173% 
SHARE OF PRE-2013 POOL UAL .... Q§I~.Qg~ .. ........ _ .. _ .... ?.!... . .................. $?L~.?Q,Z1.?....... . .... $:!:~?j§:Q:::::::]~;Q~~;?E::::: ::::::::::i?Q:§;.?:E::.:···::::: ..... 11L!.1J.,~Q~ ..................... ::.::l~Q~;~:QQ:::::::::: ... ~.,.??~.'Y.~ ........ . 

:::A$.$~f.t(G.~i~)ibQ.$.~.:::::::::·::::·::::··.: ... .Q§/3Q/13 30 ..................... 1?&1Q,??.~....... . ...... 1Q .................. J.~,Q?~,??.~.............. . .................... $..Q ...................... 1~L??.?.,.?.1Z... $46,165 1.451 % 
.f'!Q.~.~A??fL(GArf'!)!~Q.?? ..... ...... : ... :~ ... : ........... Q§I}QL!~... 30 ......................... $.C?§.,.???.2... . ..................... $.Q........_Jg?,?1~)........... . ............................ $..Q ........... J(~Q!.§?12.. .. ::::::::$.E@:::::::::IQjH~~I· 
TOTAL ......... ..... ............................. .... E,.!.!~!.!Q!. ..... ~ 19 2,33 2.!liZ!.~52,~52 .~.?,4..~.!Q.~! .............. ~.!!!.~~!.4.~? .................... ~.~.~.(:;!.~.4..!. ................. !.?.~.!.4.~.?/o 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined existing amortization bases prior to June 30, 2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board poiicy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 12 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
calPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $7,759,492 as of June 30, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $18,641,179. 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Level Rate 

Period 
2015-16 Total Total Savings Payment Payments Interest 

20 $ 585,884 $ 15,742,922 $ 7,983,430 $ 2,898,257 
15 $ 711,309 $ 13,229,575 $ 5,470,083 $ 5,411,604 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 13 

-85-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
calPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $7,759,492 as of June 30, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $18,641,179. 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Level Rate 

Period 
2015-16 Total Total Savings Payment Payments Interest 

20 $ 585,884 $ 15,742,922 $ 7,983,430 $ 2,898,257 
15 $ 711,309 $ 13,229,575 $ 5,470,083 $ 5,411,604 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 13 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 301 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liabilityl the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assetsl plan's share of the pool's unfunded liabilityl funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation Accrued Share of Pool's Plan's Share of Funded Annual 
Date Liability Market Value of Pool's Unfunded Ratio Covered 

(AL) Assets (MVA) Liability Payroll 

06/30/2011 $ 25J15/152 $ 19/367/109 $ 6)48/043 75.3% $ 3/143/049 
06/30/2012 27/660/904 19/624/525 81036)79 71.0% 3/026/536 
06/30/2013 28/672/245 21/554/138 7)18/107 75.2% 2/910/991 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate for 2.5% @ 55 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 

a) FAC 1 
Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 

16.788% 

0.566% 
17.354% 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

17.009% 

0.604% 
17.613% 

Page 14 

-86-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 301 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liabilityl the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assetsl plan's share of the pool's unfunded liabilityl funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation Accrued Share of Pool's Plan's Share of Funded Annual 
Date Liability Market Value of Pool's Unfunded Ratio Covered 

(AL) Assets (MVA) Liability Payroll 

06/30/2011 $ 25J15/152 $ 19/367/109 $ 6)48/043 75.3% $ 3/143/049 
06/30/2012 27/660/904 19/624/525 81036)79 71.0% 3/026/536 
06/30/2013 28/672/245 21/554/138 7)18/107 75.2% 2/910/991 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate for 2.5% @ 55 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 

a) FAC 1 
Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Fiscal Year 

2014-15 

16.788% 

0.566% 
17.354% 

Fiscal Year 

2015-16 

17.009% 

0.604% 
17.613% 

Page 14 



• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

-87-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 



-88-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratiO, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = 1. / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 30, 2013 

21,554,138 

2,910,991 

7.4 

28,672,245 

9.8 

Page 17 

-89-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
twice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratiO, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = 1. / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 30, 2013 

21,554,138 

2,910,991 

7.4 

28,672,245 

9.8 

Page 17 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.qov 
Leip-do~:U:aboutl..RubskmRloyer/actuarial-assurrmtions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 9.671% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 
UAL$ $ 386,347 $ 441,370 $ 499,345 $ 560,404 $ 624,674 $ 639,280 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17, 2013 CalPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning of the fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

10.1% 
$ 441,370 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
0.4% 

$ 55,023 

Page 18 

-90-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf
CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.qov 
Leip-do~:U:aboutl..RubskmPloyer/actuarial-assurrmtions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 9.671% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 10.1% 
UAL$ $ 386,347 $ 441,370 $ 499,345 $ 560,404 $ 624,674 $ 639,280 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17, 2013 CalPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning of the fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

10.1% 
$ 441,370 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
0.4% 

$ 55,023 

Page 18 



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2014 through June 30,2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 75th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each ofthe 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

UAL Contribution 
Return Scenario between 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and 2019-20 
-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 544,897 $ 697,565 $ 900,189 $ 458,819 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 518 293 $ 618 709 $ 744 329 $ 302 959 
7.5% $ 499345 $ 560 404 $ 624 674 $ 183 304 

12.0%(75th percentile) $ 481,201 $ 502 905 $ 503 093 $ 61 723 
18.9%(95th percentile) $ 453,376 $0 $0 $ (441,370) 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 10.1% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysiS gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 
As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 

(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 13.6% 9.7% 6.6% 
Accrued Liability· $ 32,305,994 $ 28,672,245 $ 25,638,983 
Unfunded Accrued Liability $ 10,751856 $ 7118107 $ 4 084,845 

Rate Plan belonging tothe Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 19 

-91-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2014 through June 30,2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 75th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each ofthe 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

UAL Contribution 
Return Scenario between 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and 2019-20 
-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 544,897 $ 697,565 $ 900,189 $ 458,819 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 518 293 $ 618 709 $ 744 329 $ 302 959 
7.5% $ 499345 $ 560 404 $ 624 674 $ 183 304 

12.0%(75th percentile) $ 481,201 $ 502 905 $ 503 093 $ 61 723 
18.9%(95th percentile) $ 453,376 $0 $0 $ (441,370) 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 10.1% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysiS gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 
As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 

(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 13.6% 9.7% 6.6% 
Accrued Liability· $ 32,305,994 $ 28,672,245 $ 25,638,983 
Unfunded Accrued Liability $ 10,751856 $ 7118107 $ 4 084,845 

Rate Plan belonging tothe Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 19 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liabilityl (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2011 $ 36,065,178 $ 19,367,109 $ 16,698,069 53.7% $ 4.82% 
06/30/2012 49,894,471 19,624,525 30,269,946 39.3% 2.98% 
06/30/2013 46,285,486 21,554,138 24,731,348 46.6% 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 20 

-92-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liabilityl (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2011 $ 36,065,178 $ 19,367,109 $ 16,698,069 53.7% $ 4.82% 
06/30/2012 49,894,471 19,624,525 30,269,946 39.3% 2.98% 
06/30/2013 46,285,486 21,554,138 24,731,348 46.6% 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 20 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30/ 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

June 3D, 2012 June 3D, 2013 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 3/307/177 $ 3/180/918 

Number of Members 

Active 49 47 
Transferred 29 33 

Separated 18 19 

Retired 56 '59 

• One Year Final Compensation 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 21 

-93-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30/ 2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

June 3D, 2012 June 3D, 2013 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes $ 3/307/177 $ 3/180/918 

Number of Members 

Active 49 47 
Transferred 29 33 

Separated 18 19 

Retired 56 '59 

• One Year Final Compensation 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 21 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after lune 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Miscellaneous Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under 
GASB 27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually 
required contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between 
contributions required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 
2015 to June 30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your 
unadjusted contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 9.671 percent of payroll and 
an unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $386,347. In order to calculate the dollar value of the 
contractually required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this 
normal cost contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing 
changes or contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that 
was actually paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of 
$386,347. However, if this contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually 
required contributions is equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are 
responsible for determining the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in 
dollars and the percentage of that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding 
years is to be disclosed under GASB 27. 

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 22 

-94-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Miscellaneous Risk Pooll a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under 
GASB 27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually 
required contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between 
contributions required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 
2015 to June 30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your 
unadjusted contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 9.671 percent of payroll and 
an unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $386,347. In order to calculate the dollar value of the 
contractually required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this 
normal cost contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing 
changes or contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that 
was actually paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of 
$386,347. However, if this contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually 
required contributions is equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are 
responsible for determining the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in 
dollars and the percentage of that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding 
years is to be disclosed under GASB 27. 

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 3D, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2. report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 22 



-95-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



-96-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 2.pdf



A 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS 10: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30, 2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
6.237% 
6.8% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$0 
$0 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 

-97-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

A 
CalPERS 

October 2014 

California Public Employees' Retirement System 
Actuarial Office 
P.O. Box 942709 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2709 
TTY: (916) 795-3240 
(888) 225-7377 phone - (916) 795-2744 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS 10: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 

Dear Employer, 

As an attachment to this letter, you will find a copy of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation 
report of your pension plan. Because this plan is in a risk pool and the CalPERS Board approved 
structural changes to risk pooling on May 21, 2014 you will notice some changes between your 
last actuarial report and this one. An overview of the changes to pooling is provided below and 
we urge you to carefully review the information provided in this report. 

Because this plan is in a risk pool, the following valuation report has been separated into two 
Sections: 

• Section 1 contains specific information for your plan, including the development of your 
pooled employer contributions and projected employer contributions, and 

• Section 2 contains the Risk Pool Actuarial Valuation appropriate to your plan, as of June 
30, 2013. 

Section 2 can be found on the CalPERS website at (www.calpers.ca.gov) then select in order 
"Employers", "Actuarial, Risk Pooling & GASB 27 Information", "Risk Pooling", "Risk Pool Annual 
Valuation Reports", then select the appropriate pool report. 

Your 2013 actuarial valuation report contains important actuarial information about your 
pension plan at CaIPERS. Your CalPERS staff actuary, whose signature appears in the Actuarial 
Certification Section on page 1, is available to discuss your report with you after October 31, 
2014. 

Future Contribution Rates 

Fiscal 
Year 

2015-16 
2016-17 (projected) 

Employer Normal 
Cost Rate 
6.237% 

6.8% 

+ Employer Payment of 
Unfunded Liability 

$0 
$0 

The exhibit above displays the Minimum Employer Contributions, before any cost sharing, for 
2015-16 along with estimates of the contributions for 2016-17. The estimated contributions for 
2016-17 are based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, including 
an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new 
amortization methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer 
rates for the first time in 2015-16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS 
Board in February 2014 that will impact rates for the first time in 2016-17. These new 
demographic assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. 



PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios", under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other than cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana/ysis// section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 

-98-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 2 

A projection of employer contributions beyond 2016-17 can be found in the Risk Analysis 
Section of this report, "Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenariosll, under a variety of 
investment return scenarios. Please disregard any projections provided to you in the past. 
Member contributions, other than cost sharing (whether paid by the employer or the 
employee), are in addition to the above amounts. The employer contributions in this report do 
not reflect any cost sharing arrangements you may have with your employees. 

The estimate for 2016-17 also assumes that there are no future contract amendments and no 
liability gains or losses (such as larger than expected pay increases, more retirements than 
expected, etc.) This is a very important assumption because these gains and losses do occur 
and can have a significant effect on your contributions. Even for the largest plans or pools, such 
gains and losses can impact the employer's contribution rate by one or two percent of payroll or 
even more in some less common circumstances. These gains and losses cannot be predicted in 
advance so the projected employer contributions are estimates. Your actual employer 
contributions for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 

Changes since the Prior Year's Valuation 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change 
the CalPERS amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 
valuations that set the 2015-16 rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing 
policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a fixed 30-year period with the increases or 
decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The impact of this new actuarial 
methodology is reflected in the ''Analysis of Future Investment Return Scenarios" subsection of 
the ''Risk Ana/ysis// section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In 
addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively 
closed all existing active risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to 
assume that the payroll of the risk pools for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 
percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits as a percentage of payroll would lead 
to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of the existing unfunded 
liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk pools. 
Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable 
levels of employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 
2014 meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two 
active pools, one for all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 
2013 valuations. By combining the pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the 
employers within the pools can once again be expected to increase at the assumed 3 percent 
annual growth. However two important changes are being made which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your 
unfunded liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a 
contribution rate. This change will address the funding issue that would still arise from 
the declining population of classic formula members. Although employers will be 
invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their unfunded liability and side fund 



PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive SummaryF/ 
section and in Appendix A, ''Statement of Actuarial Data/ Methods and AssumptionsF/ of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

!lL~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 

-99-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
Annual Valuation Report as of June 30, 2013 
Page 3 

payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be collected as a 
percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's 
total liability rather than by plan individual payroll. This will allow employers to track 
their own unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the 
allocation of unfunded liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their 
unfunded liability and some paying less. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. 
The impact of the PEPRA changes are included in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation for the 2015-16 rates. For more information on PEPRA, please refer 
to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial 
assumptions and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of 
Administration adopted relatively modest changes to the current asset allocation that will 
reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a 
long-term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. 
The Board also approved several changes to the demographic assumptions that more closely 
align with actual experience. The most significant of these is mortality improvement to 
acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and expected 
continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial 
assumptions will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-
year period with a 5-year ramp-upjramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Besides the above noted changes, there may also be changes specific to your plan such as 
contract amendments and funding changes. 

Further descriptions of general changes are included in the ''Highlights and Executive SummaryF/ 
section and in Appendix A, ''Statement of Actuarial Dataf Methods and AssumptionsF/ of your 
section 2 report. We understand that you might have a number of questions about these 
results. While we are very interested in discussing these results with your agency, in the 
interest of allowing us to give every public agency their result, we ask that, you wait until after 
October 31 to contact us with actuarial related questions. 

If you have other questions, please call our customer contact center at (888) CalPERS or (888-
225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

JLt~ 
ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 



-100-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



A 
CalPER5 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 

-101-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

A 
CalPER5 

ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
as of June 30, 2013 

for the 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 

of the 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 

REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 

July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2016 



-102-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 

-103-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

SECTION 1 - PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION 

SECTION 2 - RISK POOL ACTUARIAL VALUATION INFORMATION 



-104-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



C.A.L! FORNI/;,. PH ELLC E:.MP LOYEES' RET.! RElvIE;J\lT S YST EM 

Plan Specific Information 
for the 

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 27402) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 435667 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: NjA REPORT ID: 80829 

-105-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

C.A.L! FORNI/;,. PH ELLC E:.MP LOYEES' H..E:T.! RElvIE;J\lT S YST EM 

Plan Specific Information 
for the 

PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN 
of the 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

(CaIPERS ID: 2647630112) 
(Rate Plan: 27402) 

(CY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: 435667 (PY) FIN PROCESS CONTROL ID: NjA REPORT ID: 80829 



-106-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 

-107-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 

HIGHLIGHTS AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

1 

5 

6 

7 

8 

8 

11 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 11 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 12 

• ALTERNATE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 13 

• FUNDING HISTORY 14 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 14 

RISK ANALYSIS 

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

PARTICIPANT DATA 

LIST OF CLASS 1 BENEFIT PROVISIONS 

INFORMATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH GASB STATEMENT NO. 27 

PLAN'S MAJOR BENEFIT OPTIONS 

17 

18 

18 

19 

20 

21 

21 

22 

25 



-108-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CaIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, 
and that the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date 
of this valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in 
the California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 1 

-109-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Section 1 of this report is based on the member and financial data contained in our records as of June 30, 2013 
which was provided by your agency and the benefit provisions under your contract with CaIPERS. Section 2 of 
this report is based on the member and financial data as of June 30, 2013 provided by employers participating 
in the SAFETY risk pool to which your plan belongs and benefit provisions under the CalPERS contracts for 
those agencies. 

As set forth in Section 2 of this report, the Pool Actuary has certified that, in their opinion, the valuation of the 
Risk Pool containing your PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN has been performed in accordance with generally 
accepted actuarial principles consistent with standards of practice prescribed by the Actuarial Standards Board, 
and that the assumptions and methods are internally consistent and reasonable for the Risk Pool as of the date 
of this valuation and as prescribed by the CalPERS Board of Administration according to provisions set forth in 
the California Public Employees' Retirement Law. 

Having relied upon the information set forth in Section 2 of this report and based on the census and benefit 
provision information for your plan, it is my opinion as your Plan Actuary that the Side Fund and other 
Unfunded Accrued Liability bases as of June 30, 2013 and employer contribution rate as of July 1, 2015, have 
been properly and accurately determined in accordance with the principles and standards stated above. 

The undersigned is an actuary for CalPERS, who is a member of both the American Academy of Actuaries and 
Society of Actuaries and meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the 
actuarial opinion contained herein. 

DAVID CLEMENT, ASA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Pension Actuary, CalPERS 
Plan Actuary 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 1 



-110-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 

-111-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

• INTRODUCTION 

• PURPOSE OF SECTION 1 

• REQUIRED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION 

• PLAN'S FUNDED STATUS 

• PROJECTED CONTRIBUTIONS 



-112-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS 
PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This 
actuarial valuation was used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the "Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios' subsection of the "Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CaIPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with as-year 
ramp-up/ramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 5 

-113-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

This report presents the results of the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS 
PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS). This 
actuarial valuation was used to set the 2015-16 required employer contribution rates. 

On April 17, 2013, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved a recommendation to change the CalPERS 
amortization and rate smoothing policies. Beginning with the June 30, 2013 valuations that set the 2015-16 
rates, CalPERS will employ an amortization and smoothing policy that will pay for all gains and losses over a 
fixed 30-year period with the increases or decreases in the rate spread directly over a 5-year period. The 
impact of this new actuarial methodology is reflected in the "Analysis of Future Investment Return 
Scenarios' subsection of the "Risk Analysis"section of your report. 

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect. In addition to 
creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members PEPRA also effectively closed all existing active 
risk pools to new employees. As such it is no longer appropriate to assume that the payroll of the risk pools 
for the classic formulas will continue to grow at 3 percent annually. Funding the promised pension benefits 
as a percentage of payroll would lead to the underfunding of the plans. In addition the current allocation of 
the existing unfunded liabilities based on payroll would create equity issues for employers within the risk 
pools. Furthermore the declining payroll of the classic formula risk pools will lead to unacceptable levels of 
employer rate volatility. 

In order to address these issues the CalPERS Board of Administration approved at their May 21, 2014 
meeting structural changes to the risk pools. All pooled plans will be combined into two active pools, one for 
all miscellaneous groups and one for all safety groups, effective with the 2013 valuations. By combining the 
pools this way the payroll of the risk pools and the employers within the pools can once again be expected 
to increase at the assumed 3 percent annual growth. However two important changes are being made 
which will affect employers. 

1. Beginning with FY 2015-16 CalPERS will collect employer contributions toward your unfunded 
liability and side fund as dollar amounts instead of the prior method of a contribution rate. This 
change will address the funding issue that would still arise from the declining population of classic 
formula members. Although employers will be invoiced at the beginning of the fiscal year for their 
unfunded liability and side fund payments the plan's normal cost contribution will continue to be 
collected as a percentage of payroll. 

2. The pool's unfunded liability will be allocated to each individual plan based on the plan's total 
liability rather than by the plan's individual payroll. This will allow employers to track their own 
unfunded liability and pay it down faster if they choose. The change in the allocation of unfunded 
liabilities will result in some employers paying more towards their unfunded liability and some 
paying less. 

The impact of most of the PEPRA changes will first show up in the rates and the benefit provision listings of 
the June 30, 2013 valuation that sets the contribution rates for the 2015-16 fiscal year. For more detailed 
information on changes due to PEPRA, please refer to the CalPERS website. 

In 2014 CaIPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions 
and strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively 
modest changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns (see 
Appendix). The adopted asset allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to 
support a discount rate assumption of 7.5 percent. The Board also approved several changes to the 
demographic assumptions that more closely align with actual experience. The most significant of these is 
mortality improvement to acknowledge the greater life expectancies we are seeing in our membership and 
expected continued improvements. The new actuarial assumptions will be used to set the FY 2016-17 
contribution rates for public agency employers. The increase in liability due to new actuarial assumptions 
will be calculated in the 2014 actuarial valuation and will be amortized over a 20-year period with as-year 
ramp-up/ramp-down in accordance with Board policy. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 5 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

'1 
This section 1 report for the PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
• Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 

30,2016; 
• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 

interested parties; and 
• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

o A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 6 

-114-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

'1 
This section 1 report for the PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN of the CITY OF CAPITOLA of the California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CaIPERS) was prepared by the Plan Actuary in order to: 

• Set forth the assets and accrued liabilities of this plan as of June 30, 2013; 
• Determine the required employer contribution for this plan for the fiscal year July 1, 2015 through June 

30,2016; 
• Provide actuarial information as of June 30, 2013 to the CalPERS Board of Administration and other 

interested parties; and 
• Provide pension information as of June 30, 2013 to be used in financial reports subject to Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 27 for a Cost Sharing Multiple Employer 
Defined Benefit Pension Plan. 

The use of this report for any other purposes may be inappropriate. In particular, this report does not 
contain information applicable to alternative benefit costs. The employer should contact their actuary before 
disseminating any portion of this report for any reason that is not explicitly described above. 

California Actuarial Advisory Panel Recommendations 

This report includes all the basic disclosure elements as described in the Model Disclosure Elements for 
Actuarial Valuation Reports recommended in 2011 by the California Actuarial Advisory Panel (CAAP), with 
the exception of including the original base amounts of the various components of the unfunded liability in 
the Schedule of Amortization Bases shown on page 12. 

Additionally, this report includes the following "Enhanced Risk Disclosures" also recommended by the CAAP 
in the Model Disclosure Elements document: 

• A "Deterministic Stress Test," projecting future results under different investment income 
scenarios 

o A "Sensitivity Analysis," showing the impact on current valuation results using a 1 percent plus or 
minus change in the discount rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 6 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 
Plan's Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

None 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 
Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 
Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

None 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 
Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

2014-151 2015-16 

$ 0 $ 4,999 
0 (79)2 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

$ 0 $ 4,920 

$ 0 $ 80,158 

0.000% 6.237% 
0.000% (0.099%)2 

0.000% 0.000% 
0.000% 0.000% 
0.000% 0.000% 
0.000% 6.138% 

6.237% 
$ 0 

$ 0 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal yea~ beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyond, only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid. 

'The results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). . 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is (0.099) percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 7 

-115-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

Actuarially Determined Employer Contributions: 

Employer Contributions (in Projected Dollars) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 

Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 

Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

None 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 

Total Employer Contribution 

Projected Payroll for the Contribution Fiscal Year 

Required Employer Contributions (Percentage of Payroll) 

Plan's Net Employer Normal Cost 

Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases 

Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits3 

None 
Phase out of Normal Cost Difference4 

Amortization of Side Fund 

Total Employer Contribution Rate 

Required Employer Contribution for FY 2015-16 
Employer Contribution RateS 
Plus Monthly Employer Dollar UAL Payment6 

Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

2014-151 2015-16 

$ 0 $ 4,999 

0 (79)2 

0 0 
0 0 

0 0 

$ 0 $ 4,920 

$ 0 $ 80,158 

0.000% 6.237% 

0.000% (0.099%)2 

0.000% 0.000% 

0.000% 0.000% 

0.000% 0.000% 

0.000% 6.138% 

6.237% 
$ 0 

$ 0 

For FY 2015-16 the total minimum required employer contribution is the sum of the Plan's Employer 
Contribution Rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll) plus the Employer Unfunded Accrued Liability 
(UAL) Contribution Amount (in dollars). Whereas in prior years it was possible to prepay total employer 
contributions for the fiscal yea~ beginning with FY 2015-16 and beyond, only the UAL portion of the 
employer contribution can be prepaid. 

1 The results shown for FY 2014-15 reflect the prior year valuation and do not reflect any lump sum payment, side fund 
payoff or rate adjustment made after annual valuation report is completed. 

2 For FY 2015-16 the Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases reflects the sum of all UAL amortization bases including the 
Plan's Side Fund (where applicable). . 

3 Section 2 of this report contains a list of Class 1 benefits and corresponding surcharges for each benefit. 

4 Risk pooling was implemented for most plans as of June 30, 2003. The normal cost difference was scheduled to be 
phased out over a five year period. The phase out of normal cost difference is 100 percent for the first year of pooling, 
and is incrementally reduced by 20 percent of the original normal cost difference for each subsequent year. 

5 The minimum employer contribution under PEPRA is the greater of the required employer contribution or the total 
employer normal cost. 

6 The Plan's Payment on Amortization Bases Contribution amount for FY 2015-16 will be billed as a level dollar amount 
monthly over the course of the year. Late payments will accrue interest at an annual rate of 7.5 percent. Lump sum 
payments may be made through myICaIPERS. Plan Normal Cost contributions will be made as part of the payroll 
reporting process. As a percentage of payroll your UAL contribution is (0.099) percent. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 7 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

0 $ 85,150 

0 3,331 

0 4,469 

0 (1,138) 

0.0% 134.2% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
available, including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

6.8% 
o 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pool, that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next year, and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore, the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 8 

-116-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

1. Present Value of Projected Benefits (PVB) $ 

2. Entry Age Normal Accrued Liability 

3. Plan's Market Value of Assets (MVA) 

4. Unfunded Liability [(2) - (3)] 

5. Funded Ratio [(3) / (2)] 

June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013 

0 $ 85,150 

0 3,331 

0 4,469 

0 (1,138) 

0.0% 134.2% 

The contribution rate and amount shown below is an estimate for the employer contribution for fiscal year 
2016-17. The estimated contribution is based on a projection of the most recent information we have 
available, including an estimate of the investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, namely 18.0 percent. It 
also reflects implementation of the direct rate smoothing method and the impact of new actuarial 
assumptions. 

Projected Employer Contribution Rate: 
Projected Plan UAL Contribution $ 

6.8% 
o 

The estimate also assumes that there are no liability gains or losses among the plans in your risk pool, that 
your plan has no new amendments in the next year, and that your plan's and your risk pool's payrolls both 
increase exactly 3.0 percent in the 2013-14 fiscal year. Therefore, the projected employer contribution for 
2016-17 is strictly an estimate. Your actual rate for 2016-17 will be provided in next year's valuation report. 
A more detailed analysis of your projected employer contributions over the next five years can be found in 
the "Risk Analysis" section of this report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 8 



• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 

-117-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S UAL 

• DEVELOPMENT OF PLAN'S SHARE OF POOL'S MVA 

• SCHEDULE OF PLAN'S SIDE FUND & OTHER AMORTIZATION BASES 

• ALTERNATIVE AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES 

• FUNDING HISTORY 

• PLAN'S TOTAL NORMAL COST RATE 



-118-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UALdue to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 (Gain)/Loss 
10. Plan's Share of Pool's (Gain)/Loss [(1)]/[(4)] * (9) 
11. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(10)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

3,331 
o 
o 

1,063,294 
o 
o 
o 
o 

(363,303) 
(1,138) 

(1,138) 

3,331 
(1,138) 
4,469 

Page 11 

-119-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

It is the policy of the CalPERS to ensure equity within the risk pools by allocating the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability in a manner that treats each employer fairly and that maintains benefit security for the 
members of the System while minimizing substantial variations in employer contributions. Commencing with 
the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations and for purposes of allocating the pool's unfunded accrued liability to 
all the individual plans within the pool, an individual plan's total unfunded accrued liability (Preliminary Plan 
UAL) on a specific valuation date will be set equal to the sum of the outstanding unamortized balances on 
the valuation date for the following: 

a) Side Fund 
b) Plan's share of Pool UALdue to benefit changes (including golden handshakes) provided to the 

members of that plan 
c) Plan's share of the Pool UAL created before the valuation date for reasons other than benefit 

changes 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 

2. Plan's Side Fund 
3. Increase in Plan's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
4. Pool's Accrued Liability 
5. Sum of Pool's Individual Plan Side Funds 
6. Increase in Pool's AL for amendments in FY 2012-13 
7. Pre-2013 Pool's UAL 
8. Plan's Share of Pre-2013 Pool's UAL [(1)-(2)-(3)]/[(4)-(5)-(6)] * (7) 

9. Pool's 2013 (Gain)/Loss 
10. Plan's Share of Pool's (Gain)/Loss [(1)]/[(4)] * (9) 
11. Plan's UAL as of 6/30/2013 [(2)+(8)+(10)] 

1. Plan's Accrued Liability 
2. Plan's UAL 
3. Plan's Share of Pool's MVA (1)-(2) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

3,331 
o 
o 

1,063,294 
o 
o 
o 
o 

(363,303) 
(1,138) 

(1,138) 

3,331 
(1,138) 
4,469 

Page 11 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 3D, 2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

Amorti-
Date zation 

Reason for Base Established Period 
..... M ............... __ ........................ " .... ",,· 

FRESH START ............................................................. 
Q§Z~:QhI:············30 

TOTAL .................. ,,, ... ,, ... , ....................... , .......... . 

Expected Expected 
Balance Payment Balance Payment 

.. J~[~.Q/.!~ ..... . 21:1.~ .. ~.:.~4. ... ~I~9U4. ..... ?Q.1.::4..:.1.::.?. .. . 
. lel..,!}.?) .... 

$.(~!.~.~.~1............ .. 
lQ ................................ JU.l.??~) .............................. $..Q ... . 

. ...... ~.Q .......................... $.(~!.??:~.L .............................................. ~Q .... . 

Amounts for Fiscal 2015-16 
···············Scheduied················Payment as 

Balance Payment for Percentage of 
6/ ~9./!§........... ..... ?:Q.1.::~.:.!!?...............J:J.i!yrQ1.1.. ............. . 

... Kl.,~!?).......... .......... $.(?~.L .... JQ,Q~~"!91 .. . 
.l(1.::!.~~?1 ...................... ~(Z~L .. (Q~9~~~!C?1. .. 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined existing amortization bases prior to June 30,2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 12 

-120-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

There is a two-year lag between the Valuation Date and the Contribution Fiscal Year. 
• The assets, liabilities and funded status of the plan are measured as of the valuation date; June 30,2013. 
• The employer contribution determined by the valuation is for the fiscal year beginning two years after the valuation date; fiscal year 2015-16. 

This two-year lag is necessary due to the amount of time needed to extract and test the membership and financial data, and due to the need to provide public agencies 
with their employer contribution well in advance of the start of the fiscal year. 

The Unfunded Liability is used to determine the employer contribution and therefore must be rolled forward two years from the valuation date to the first day of the 
fiscal year for which the contribution is being determined. The Unfunded Liability is rolled forward each year by subtracting the expected Payment on the Unfunded 
Liability for the fiscal year and adjusting for interest. The Expected Payment on the Unfunded Liability for a fiscal year is equal to the Expected Employer 
Contribution for the fiscal year minus the Expected Normal Cost for the year. The Employer Contribution Rate for the first fiscal year is determined by the actuarial 
valuation two years ago and the rate for the second year is from the actuarial valuation one year ago. The Normal Cost Rate for each of the two fiscal years is 
assumed to be the same as the rate determined by the current valuation. All expected dollar amounts, with the exception of the Side Fund base, are determined by 
multiplying the rate by the expected payroll for the applicable fiscal year, based on payroll as of the valuation date. 

Amounts for Fiscal 2015-16 
Amorti- Expected Expected ........... ··········································Scheduied················Paymenias······· . 

Date zation Balance Payment Balance Payment Balance Payment for Percentage of 
Reason for Base 

............ M ............... __ ........................ " .... . 

FRESH START ............................................................. 

Established Period 
.Q§Z~:QhI············ 30 

.... J?'[~.Q/.!~ 
.. ... lel.,!}.?), 

2..9..1.~.:.!4 ........... ~I~.9.U.4. ..... ?.9..!4..:.!5 
. .$..Q ................................ lU.l.??~) ................................ $..Q ... . 

6/30 / :I,~ .................... ?:Q.!~.:.:J,!?...............J:J.i!yrQIJ.. ............. . 
...... Kl.,~!?2......... . ......... $.(?~.L .... JQ,.Q~~"!91 .. . 

TOTAL ....$.(~!.~.~.~1 .......... . ................ ~.Q .......................... $.(~!.??:~.L .............................................. ~Q ... . ...$.(!!.~~~l ...................... ~(Z~L .. (9.~.9.~~~!C?1. 

Commencing with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations, the side fund will be treated as a liability as opposed to an asset. Prior to June 30, 2013, a 
positive side fund conveyed that a public agency had a surplus when risk pooling began June 30, 2003. Conversely, a negative side fund signified 
that a public agency had an unfunded liability that required elimination through an amortization payment schedule. After June 30, 2013 a positive 
side fund will signify that an agency has an unfunded liability while a negative side fund will indicate a surplus asset. The amortization schedule will 
remain unchanged, with the exception that a plan with a negative side fund may have its amortization period extended at the discretion of the plan 
actuary. 

Your plan's allocated share of the risk's pool's unfunded accrued liability is based on your plan's accrued liability and is amortized over the average amortization period of 
the combined existing amortization bases prior to June 30,2013. The payments on this base for Fiscal Year 2013-14 and 2014-15 are allocated by your plan's payroll. 

The (gain)/Ioss base is your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's asset gain/loss for the Fiscal Year 2012-13, the change in unfunded accrued liability due to direct 
rate smoothing and your plan's allocated share of the risk pool's other liability gains and losses for fiscal year 2012-13. This base will be amortized according to 
Board policy over 30 years with a 5-year ramp-up. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 12 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $(1,315) as of June 3D, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $0. 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Period 

N/A 

2015-16 
Payment 

N/A 

Level Rate 

Total 
Payments 

N/A 

Total 
Interest 

N/A 

Savings 

N/A 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 13 

-121-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The amortization schedule shown on the previous page shows the minimum contributions required according to 
CalPERS amortization policy. There has been considerable interest from many agencies in paying off these 
unfunded accrued liabilities sooner and the possible savings in doing so. As a result, we have provided alternate 
amortization schedules to help analyze your current amortization schedule and illustrate the advantages of 
accelerating unfunded liability payments towards your plan's unfunded liability of $(1,315) as of June 3D, 2015, 
which will require total payments of $0. 

Shown below are the level rate payments required to amortize your plan's unfunded liability assuming a fresh 
start over the various periods noted. Note that the payments under each scenario would increase by 3 percent for 
each year into the future. 

Period 

N/A 

2015-16 
Payment 

N/A 

Level Rate 

Total 
Payments 

N/A 

Total 
Interest 

N/A 

Savings 

N/A 

Current CalPERS Board policy calls for lump sum contributions in excess of the required employer contribution 
shall first be used to eliminate the side fund, if applicable, and then the plan's share of the pool's unfunded 
accrued liability. 

Please contact your plan actuary before making such a payment to ensure that the payment is applied correctly. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 13 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE cm OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liability, the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assets, plan's share of the pool's unfunded liability, funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation 
Date 

06/30/2013 $ 

Accrued 
Liability 

(AL) 

3,331 

Share of Pool's 
Market Value of 

Assets (MVA) 

$ 4,469 

Plan's Share of 
Pool's Unfunded 

Liability 

$ (1,138) 

Funded 
Ratio 

134.2% $ 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

73,356 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

2014-15 2015-16 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate 0.000% 12.487% 

Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 
None 0.000% 0.000% 

Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 0.000% 12.487% 

For FY 2015-16 there is no change to the PEPRA employee contribution rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 14 

-122-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE cm OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The Funding History below shows the actuarial accrued liability, the plan's share of the pool's market value of 
assets, plan's share of the pool's unfunded liability, funded ratio and the annual covered payroll. 

Valuation 
Date 

06/30/2013 $ 

Accrued 
Liability 

(AL) 

3,331 

Share of Pool's 
Market Value of 

Assets (MVA) 

$ 4,469 

Plan's Share of 
Pool's Unfunded 

Liability 

$ (1,138) 

Funded 
Ratio 

134.2% $ 

Annual 
Covered 
Payroll 

73,356 

The Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 requires that new employees pay at least 50 percent of the 
total annual normal cost and that current employees approach the same goal through collective bargaining. 
Please refer to the CalPERS website for more details. 

Shown below are the total annual normal cost rates for your plan. 

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 

2014-15 2015-16 

Plan's Net Total Normal Cost Rate 0.000% 12.487% 
Surcharge for Class 1 Benefits 

None 0.000% 0.000% 
Plan's Total Normal Cost Rate 0.000% 12.487% 

For FY 2015-16 there is no change to the PEPRA employee contribution rate. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 14 



• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 

-123-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

• VOLATILITY RATIOS 

• PROJECTED EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

• ANALYSIS OF FUTURE INVESTMENT RETURN SCENARIOS 

• ANALYSIS OF DISCOUNT RATE SENSITIVITY 

• HYPOTHETICAL TERMINATION LIABILITY 



-124-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS 10: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
tWice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratiO, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = L / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 3D, 2013 

4,469 

73,356 

0.1 

3,331 

0.0 

Page 17 

-125-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS 10: 2647630112 

The actuarial calculations supplied in this communication are based on a number of assumptions about very 
long-term demographic and economic behavior. Unless these assumptions (terminations, deaths, 
disabilities, retirements, salary growth, and investment return) are exactly realized each year, there will be 
differences on a year-to-year basis. The year-to-year differences between actual experience and the 
assumptions are called actuarial gains and losses and serve to lower or raise the employer's rates from one 
year to the next. Therefore, the rates will inevitably fluctuate, especially due to the ups and downs of 
investment returns. 

Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR) 

Plans that have higher asset to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return. For example, a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 8 may experience twice the contribution 
volatility due to investment return volatility, than a plan with an asset to payroll ratio of 4. Below we have 
shown your asset volatility ratio, a measure of the plan's current rate volatility. It should be noted that this 
ratio is a measure of the current situation. It increases over time but generally tends to stabilize as the plan 
matures. 

Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR) 

Plans that have higher liability to payroll ratios produce more volatile employer rates due to investment 
return and changes in liability. For example, a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 8 is expected to have 
tWice the contribution volatility of a plan with a liability to payroll ratio of 4. The liability volatility ratio is also 
included in the table below. It should be noted that this ratio indicates a longer-term potential for 
contribution volatility and the asset volatility ratiO, described above, will tend to move closer to this ratio as 
the plan matures. 

Rate Volatility 

1. Market Value of Assets 

2. Payroll 

3. Asset Volatility Ratio (AVR = L / 2.) 

4. Accrued Liability 

5. Liability Volatility Ratio (LVR = 4. / 2.) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

$ 

$ 

As of June 3D, 2013 

4,469 

73,356 

0.1 

3,331 

0.0 

Page 17 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.gov 
I eip-docs!about/pubsJ employer!actuarial-assumptions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 6.237% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 
UAL$ $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

For new plans where active members have accrued little service the future UAL dollar amounts may be 
unstable. It is more prudent to use projected normal cost times expected payroll for employer budgeting 
purposes. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17, 2013 calPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning ofthe fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

6.8% 
$ 0 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
0.6% 

$ 0 

Page 18 

-126-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

The estimated rate for 2016-17 is based on a projection of the most recent information we have available, 
including an estimated 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal 2013-14, the impact of the new smoothing 
methods adopted by the CalPERS Board in April 2013 that will impact employer rates for the first time in 2015-
16 and new actuarial assumptions adopted by the CalPERS Board in February 2014. These new demographic 
assumptions include a 20-year projected improvement in mortality. A complete listing of the new demographic 
assumptions to be implemented with the June 30, 2014 annual actuarial valuation and incorporated in the 
projected rates for FY 2016-17 and beyond can be found on the CalPERS website at: http://www.calpers.ca.gov 
I eip-docs!about/pubsJ employer!actuarial-assumptions.xls 

The table below shows projected employer contribution rates (before cost sharing) for the next five Fiscal 
Years, assuming CalPERS earns 18.0% for fiscal year 2013-14 and 7.50 percent every fiscal year 
thereafter, and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and that no further changes to 
assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between now and the beginning of the fiscal year 
2016-17. 

New Rate Projected Future Employer Contribution Rates 

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 

Normal Cost %: 6.237% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 6.8% 
UAL$ $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

For new plans where active members have accrued little service the future UAL dollar amounts may be 
unstable. It is more prudent to use projected normal cost times expected payroll for employer budgeting 
purposes. 

In 2014 CalPERS completed a 2-year asset liability management study incorporating actuarial assumptions and 
strategic asset allocation. On February 19, 2014 the CalPERS Board of Administration adopted relatively modest 
changes to the current asset allocation that will reduce the expected volatility of returns. The adopted asset 
allocation is expected to have a long- term blended return that continues to support a discount rate assumption 
of 7.5 percent. The newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected investment volatility that will result in 
better risk characteristics than an equivalent margin for adverse deviation. The current asset allocation has an 
expected standard deviation of 12.45 percent while the newly adopted asset allocation has a lower expected 
standard deviation of 11.76 percent. 

The investment return for fiscal year 2013-14 was announced July 14, 2014. The investment return in fiscal 
year 2013-14 is 18.42 percent before administrative expenses. This year, there will be no adjustment for real 
estate and private equities. For purposes of projecting future employer rates, we are assuming a 18.0 percent 
investment return for fiscal year 2013-14. 

The investment return realized during a fiscal year first affects the contribution rate for the fiscal year 2 years 
later. Specifically, the investment return for 2013-14 will first be reflected in the June 30, 2014 actuarial 
valuation that will be used to set the 2016-17 employer contribution rates, the 2014-15 investment return will 
first be reflected in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation that will be used to set the 2017-18 employer 
contribution rates and so forth. 

Based on a 18.0 percent investment return for fiscal year 2013-14, the April 17, 2013 calPERS Board-approved 
amortization and rate smoothing method change, the February 18, 2014 new demographic assumptions 
including 20-year mortality improvement using Scale BB and assuming that all other actuarial assumptions will 
be realized, and that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur between 
now and the beginning ofthe fiscal year 2016-17, the effect on the 2016-17 Employer Rate is as follows: 

Normal Cost %: 
UAL$ 

Estimated 2016-17 
Employer Contribution 

6.8% 
$ 0 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Estimated Increase in 
Employer Contribution between 

2015-16 and 2016-17 
0.6% 

$ 0 

Page 18 



CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS 10: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25 th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

,. The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets wereto give us a 75 th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

UAL Contribution 
Return Scenario between 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and 2019-20 
-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 297 $ 409 $ 774 $ 774 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 83 $130 $ 289 $ 289 
7.5% $0 $0 $0 $0 

12.0%(7Sth percentile) $0 $0 $0 $0 
18.9%(9Sth percentile) $0 $0 $0 $0 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 6.8% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 

As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 
(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 8.9% 6.2% 4.2% 
Accrued Liability $ 4,388 $ 3,331 $ 2,453 
Unfunded Accrued Liability . $ (81) $ (1138) $ (2,016) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 19 

-127-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACfUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS 10: 2647630112 

As part of this report, a sensitivity analysis was performed to determine the effects of various investment 
returns during fiscal years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 on the 2017-18, 2018-19 and 2019-20 employer 
rates. Once again, the projected rate increases assume that all other actuarial assumptions will be realized and 
that no further changes to assumptions, contributions, benefits, or funding will occur. 

Five different investment return scenarios were selected. 
• The first scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 5th percentile return from 

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 5th percentile return corresponds to a -3.8 percent return for 
each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• The second scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 25 th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 25th percentile return corresponds to a 2.8 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

,. The third scenario assumed the return for 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 would be our assumed 7.5 
percent investment return which represents about a 49th percentile event. 

• The fourth scenario is what one would expect if the markets wereto give us a 75 th percentile return 
from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 75th percentile return corresponds to a 12.0 percent 
return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

• Finally, the last scenario is what one would expect if the markets were to give us a 95th percentile 
return from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017. The 95th percentile return corresponds to a 18.9 
percent return for each of the 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 fiscal years. 

The table below shows the estimated projected contribution rates and the estimated increases for your plan 
under the five different scenarios. 

Estimated Total 

2014-17 Investment 
Estimated Employer UAL Contribution Change in Employer 

UAL Contribution 
Return Scenario between 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and 2019-20 
-3.8% (5th percentile) $ 297 $ 409 $ 774 $ 774 
2.8% (25th percentile) $ 83 $130 $ 289 $ 289 
7.5% $0 $0 $0 $0 

12.0%(7Sth percentile) $0 $0 $0 $0 
18.9%(9Sth percentile) $0 $0 $0 $0 

In addition to the UAL Contribution amounts shown above the estimated employer normal cost of 6.8% of 
payroll will also be payable in each of the fiscal years shown above. The projected plan normal cost is expected 
to remain relatively stable over this time period. 

The following analysis looks at the 2015-16 employer contributions under two different discount rate scenarios. 
Shown below are the employer contributions assuming discount rates that are 1 percent lower and 1 percent 
higher than the current valuation discount rate. This analysis gives an indication of the potential required 
employer contribution rates if the PERF were to realize investment returns of 6.50 percent or 8.50 percent over 
the long-term. 

This type of analysis gives the reader a sense of the long-term risk to the employer contributions. 

2015-16 Employer Contribution 

As of June 30, 2013 6.50% Discount Rate 7.50% Discount Rate 8.50% Discount Rate 
(-1%) (assumed rate) (+1%) 

Plan's Employer Normal Cost 8.9% 6.2% 4.2% 
Accrued Liability $ 4,388 $ 3,331 $ 2,453 
Unfunded Accrued Liability . $ (81) $ (1138) $ (2,016) 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 19 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, "the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liabilityl (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2013 $ 759 $ 4,469 $ (3Jl0) 588.8% $ 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

For plans where active members have little service the hypothetical termination liability 
methodology used does not fully vest active members upon termination. In these cases the 
hypothetical termination liability is understated. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 20 

-128-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30, 2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CaIPERS ID: 2647630112 

Below is an estimate of the financial position of your plan if you had terminated your contract with CalPERS 
as of June 30, 2013 using the discount rates shown below. Your plan liability on a termination basis is 
calculated differently compared to the plan's ongoing funding liability. For this hypothetical termination 
liability both compensation and service is frozen as of the valuation date and no future pay increases or 
service accruals are included. In December 2012, "the CalPERS Board adopted a more conservative 
investment policy and asset allocation strategy for the Terminated Agency Pool. Since the Terminated 
Agency Pool has limited funding sources, expected benefit payments are secured by risk-free assets. With 
this change, CalPERS increased benefit security for members while limiting its funding risk. This asset 
allocation has a lower expected rate of return than the PERF. Consequently, the lower discount rate for the 
Terminated Agency pool results in higher liabilities for terminated plans. 

In order to terminate your plan, you must first contact our Retirement Services Contract Unit to initiate a 
Resolution of Intent to Terminate. The completed Resolution will allow your plan actuary to give you a 
preliminary termination valuation with a more up-to-date estimate of your plan liabilities. CalPERS advises 
you to consult with your plan actuary before beginning this process. 

Valuation Hypothetical Market Value Unfunded Termination Termination 
Date Termination of Assets Termination Funded Liability 

Liabilityl (MVA) Liability Ratio Discount 
Rate2 

06/30/2013 $ 759 $ 4,469 $ (3Jl0) 588.8% $ 3.72% 

1 The hypothetical liabilities calculated above include a 7 percent mortality load contingency in accordance 
with Board policy. Other actuarial assumptions, such as wage and inflation assumptions, can be found in 
appendix A. 

2 The discount rate assumption used for termination valuations is a weighted average of the 10 and 30-year 
US Treasury yields in effect on the valuation date that equal the duration of the pension liabilities. For 
purposes of this hypothetical termination liability estimate, the discount rate used, is the yield on the 30-
year US Treasury Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities (STRIPS). Note that as 
of June 30, 2014 the 30-year STRIPS rate is 3.55 percent. 

For plans where active members have little service the hypothetical termination liability 
methodology used does not fully vest active members upon termination. In these cases the 
hypothetical termination liability is understated. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 20 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes 

Number of Members 

Active 

Transferred 

Separated 

Retired 

1 
• None 

Rate Plan belongin~ to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

June 30, 2012 

$ 0 

o 
o 
o 
o 

June 30, 2013 

$ 80,158 

1 

o 
o 
o 

Page 21 

-129-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
CalPERS ID: 2647630112 

The table below shows a summary of your plan's member data upon which this valuation is based: 

Projected Payroll for Contribution Purposes 

Number of Members 

Active 

Transferred 

Separated 

Retired 

1 
• None 

Rate Plan belongin~ to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

June 30, 2012 

$ 0 

o 
o 
o 
o 

June 30, 2013 

$ 80,158 

1 

o 
o 
o 

Page 21 



CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Miscellaneous Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under 
GASB 27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually 
required contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between 
contributions required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 
2015 to June 30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your 
unadjusted contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 6.237 percent of payroll and 
an unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $0. In order to calculate the dollar value of the contractually 
required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this normal cost 
contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing changes or 
contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that was actually 
paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of $0. However, if this 
contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually required contributions is 
equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are responsible for determining 
the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in dollars and the percentage of 
that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding years is to be disclosed under 
GASB 27. 

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 22 

-130-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALPERS ACTUARIAL VALUATION - June 30,2013 
PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
calPERS ID: 2647630112 

Disclosure under GASB 27 follows. However, note that effective for financial statements for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, GASB 68 replaces GASB 27. Disclosure required 
under GASB 68 will require additional reporting. CalPERS is intending to provide GASB 68 
disclosure information upon request for an additional fee. We urge you to start discussions 
with your auditors on how to implement GASB 68. 

Your plan is part of the Miscellaneous Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. Under 
GASB 27, an employer should recognize annual pension expenditures/expense equal to its contractually 
required contributions to the plan. Pension liabilities and assets result from the difference between 
contributions required and contributions made. The contractually required contribution for the period July 1, 
2015 to June 30, 2016 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2013. Your 
unadjusted contribution for the indicated period is a normal cost contribution of 6.237 percent of payroll and 
an unfunded accrued liability dollar amount of $0. In order to calculate the dollar value of the contractually 
required contributions for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2016, this normal cost 
contribution rate, less any employee cost sharing, and as modified by any subsequent financing changes or 
contract amendments for the year, would be multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that was actually 
paid during the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 combined with the UAL amount of $0. However, if this 
contribution is fully prepaid in a lump sum, then the dollar value of contractually required contributions is 
equal to the lump sum prepayment. The employer and the employer's auditor are responsible for determining 
the contractually required contributions. Further, the required contributions in dollars and the percentage of 
that amount contributed for the current year and each of the two preceding years is to be disclosed under 
GASB 27. 

A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the contractually required 
contributions is shown below for the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. 

Valuation Date 
Actuarial Cost Method 
Amortization Method 
Asset Valuation Method 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount Rate 
Projected Salary Increases 
Inflation 
Payroll Growth 
Individual Salary Growth 

June 30, 2013 
Entry Age Normal Cost Method 
Level Percent of Payroll 
Market Value 

7.50% (net of administrative expenses) 
3.30% to 14.20% depending on Age, Service, and type of employment 
2.75% 
3.00% 
A merit scale varying by duration of employment coupled with an 
assumed annual inflation growth of 2.75% and an annual production 
growth of 0.25%. 

Complete information on assumptions and methods is provided in Appendix A of the Section 2 report. 
Appendix B of the Section 2 report contains a description of benefits included in the Risk Pool Actuarial 
Valuation. 

A Schedule of Funding for the Risk Pool's actuarial value of assets, accrued liability, their relationship, and 
the relationship of the unfunded liability (UL) to payroll for the risk pool(s) to which your plan belongs can 
be found in Section 2 of the report. 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool Page 22 



-131-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



-132-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf



SECTION 1- PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 
Social Security Coverage 
Full/Modified 

Final Average Compensation Period 

Sick Leave Credit 

Non-Industrial Disability 

Industrial Disability 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level 
Special 
Alternate (firefighters) 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) 

COLA 

Contract package 

Active 
Misc 

2.0% @62 
no 
full 

36 mos. 

yes 

standard 

no 

yes 
level 2 

no 
no 

$500 
no 

2% 

CaIPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 
Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 

Page 25 

-133-

Item
 #: 9.B

. A
ttach

 3.p
d

f

SECTION 1- PLAN SPECIFIC INFORMATION FOR THE PEPRA MISCELLANEOUS PLAN OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 

Shown below is a summary of the major optional benefits for which your agency has contracted. A description of principal standard and optional plan provisions 
is in Appendix B within Section 2 of this report. 

Contract package 

Benefit Provision 

Benefit Formula 
Social Security Coverage 
Full/Modified 

Final Average Compensation Period 

Sick Leave Credit 

Non-Industrial Disability 

Industrial Disability 

Pre-Retirement Death Benefits 
Optional Settlement 2W 
1959 Survivor Benefit Level 
Special 
Alternate (firefighters) 

Post-Retirement Death Benefits 
Lump Sum 
Survivor Allowance (PRSA) 

COLA 

CaIPERS Actuarial Valuation - June 30, 2013 

Active 
Misc 

2.0% @62 
no 
full 

36 mos. 

yes 

standard 

no 

yes 
level 2 

no 
no 

$500 
no 

2% 

Rate Plan belonging to the Miscellaneous Risk Pool 
Page 25 



CALIFORNIA PU.HLiC .EIyIP.LOYE.ES' RJ.:::'fIHEMEN'r SYS'fEJ\{ 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 

-134-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 3.pdf

CALIFORNIA PU.HLiC .EIyIP.LOYE.ES' RJ.:::'fIHEMEN'r SYS'fEJ\{ 

• Employers 

• Actuarial & GASB 27 Information 

• Risk Pooling 

• Risk Pool Annual Valuation Report 



California Public Employees' Retirement System 

Actuarial Office 

P.O. Box 942704 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2704 

TTY: (877) 249-7442 j\. 
CalPERS 

888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) phone· (916) 795-3005 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

December 19, 2012 

Employer Name: City of Capitola 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 
Employee Category: Safety Police 
Rate Plan Identifier: 25836 

Dear Employer: 

Subject: BENEFIT FORMULA AND CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR NEW MEMBERS 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1,2013 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you about the impact that the recent passage of 
Assembly Bill (AB) 340 pension reform will have on employee and employer contribution 
rates to CaIPERS. AB 340 created the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) 
that implemented new benefit formulas and final compensation period, as well as new 
contribution requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who meet 
the definition of new member as per PEPRA. Please refer to the Pension Reform section 
of the CalPERS website for more information on pension reform, including information 

. regarding when an employee will be considered a new member under PEPRA. 

The table below provides information on the benefit formula, final compensation period and 
the employer and member contribution rates effective January 1, 2013 for any safety 
police employees that meet the definition of a new member under PEPRA. 

Benefit Formula Safety 2.7% at Age 57 
Final Compensation Period 3 Year Final Compensation 
Employer Contribution Rate as a 11.50% of Reportable Compensation 
percentage of payroll 
Member Contribution Rate as a 11.50% of Reportable Compensation 
percentage of payroll 

Since you currently participate in a risk pool, your new safety police members will 
participate in the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool that was created by the CalPERS 
Board in November 2012 in response to the passage of PEPRA. The employer 
contribution rate listed above will be good until June 30, 2015. This rate will not be revised 
until the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool is 
completed in the fall of 2014 that will set the contribution requirement for fiscal year July 1, 
2015 through June 30, 2016. 

In accordance with PEPRA and CalPERS interpretation of the term similarly situated, the 
member contribution rate shown in the above table was set at 50% of the expected total 

-135-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 4.pdf

California Public Employees' Retirement System 

Actuarial Office 

P.O. Box 942704 
Sacramento, CA 94229-2704 

TTY: (877) 249-7442 j\. 
CalPERS 

888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) phone· (916) 795-3005 fax 
www.calpers.ca.gov 

December 19, 2012 

Employer Name: City of Capitola 
CalPERS 10: 2647630112 
Employee Category: Safety Police 
Rate Plan Identifier: 25836 

Dear Employer: 

Subject: BENEFIT FORMULA AND CONTRIBUTION RATES FOR NEW MEMBERS 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1,2013 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you about the impact that the recent passage of 
Assembly Bill (AB) 340 pension reform will have on employee and employer contribution 
rates to CaIPERS. AB 340 created the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) 
that implemented new benefit formulas and final compensation period, as well as new 
contribution requirements for new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 who meet 
the definition of new member as per PEPRA. Please refer to the Pension Reform section 
of the CalPERS website for more information on pension reform, including information 

. regarding when an employee will be considered a new member under PEPRA. 

The table below provides information on the benefit formula, final compensation period and 
the employer and member contribution rates effective January 1, 2013 for any safety 
police employees that meet the definition of a new member under PEPRA. 

Benefit Formula Safety 2.7% at Age 57 
Final Compensation Period 3 Year Final Compensation 
Employer Contribution Rate as a 11.50% of Reportable Compensation 
percentage of payroll 
Member Contribution Rate as a 11.50% of Reportable Compensation 
percentage of payroll 

Since you currently participate in a risk pool, your new safety police members will 
participate in the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool that was created by the CalPERS 
Board in November 2012 in response to the passage of PEPRA. The employer 
contribution rate listed above will be good until June 30, 2015. This rate will not be revised 
until the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation of the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool is 
completed in the fall of 2014 that will set the contribution requirement for fiscal year July 1, 
2015 through June 30, 2016. 

In accordance with PEPRA and CalPERS interpretation of the term similarly situated, the 
member contribution rate shown in the above table was set at 50% of the expected total 



Benefit Formula and Contribution Rate for New Members effective January 1, 2013 
December 19, 2012 
Page 2 

normal cost rate for the benefits that will apply to your new safety police members on 
January 1, 2013 rounded to the nearest one quarter of one percent. The total normal cost 
rate used for this calculation is 23.0 percent of payroll. The normal cost rate was derived 
based on the benefit formula and final compensation period listed in the above table as 
well as all other optional benefit provisions you have contracted with CalPERS for your 
employees. Since the actual demographics of your new pool will not be known until new 
members are hired, and due to the limited time available for implementation of PEPRA, the 
normal cost rate was derived based on the demographics of a pool of CalPERS employers 
and the actuarial assumptions used in the Actuarial Cost Analysis of AS 340. For 
information on how the normal cost was derived and the actuarial assumptions used, 
please refer to the following link on the CalPERS website at: 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/eip-docs/employer/program-services/member-rates-pepra.pdf 

Note that the member contribution rate may change over time if the total normal cost for 
new members fluctuates by more than one percent of payroll over the estimated initial 
normal cost rate of 23.0 percent of payroll. The total normal cost rate will be impacted 
over time by the actual demographics of the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool and the 
actuarial assumptions used in the funding of the retirement benefits. The member rate will 
be reviewed once a year when the actuarial valuation of your plan is performed. The first 
review is expected to be in conjunction with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation that will 
take place in the fall of 2014. Therefore, the member contribution rate listed in the above 
table is expected to remain unchanged until July 1, 2015. 

For more information, you may visit the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. If you 
have questions, please contact the CalPERS Customer Contact Center at 
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 

-136-

Item #: 9.B. Attach 4.pdf

Benefit Formula and Contribution Rate for New Members effective January 1, 2013 
December 19, 2012 
Page 2 

normal cost rate for the benefits that will apply to your new safety police members on 
January 1, 2013 rounded to the nearest one quarter of one percent. The total normal cost 
rate used for this calculation is 23.0 percent of payroll. The normal cost rate was derived 
based on the benefit formula and final compensation period listed in the above table as 
well as all other optional benefit provisions you have contracted with CalPERS for your 
employees. Since the actual demographics of your new pool will not be known until new 
members are hired, and due to the limited time available for implementation of PEPRA, the 
normal cost rate was derived based on the demographics of a pool of CalPERS employers 
and the actuarial assumptions used in the Actuarial Cost Analysis of AS 340. For 
information on how the normal cost was derived and the actuarial assumptions used, 
please refer to the following link on the CalPERS website at: 

http://www.calpers.ca.gov/eip-docs/employer/program-services/member-rates-pepra.pdf 

Note that the member contribution rate may change over time if the total normal cost for 
new members fluctuates by more than one percent of payroll over the estimated initial 
normal cost rate of 23.0 percent of payroll. The total normal cost rate will be impacted 
over time by the actual demographics of the Safety 2.7 percent at age 57 risk pool and the 
actuarial assumptions used in the funding of the retirement benefits. The member rate will 
be reviewed once a year when the actuarial valuation of your plan is performed. The first 
review is expected to be in conjunction with the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation that will 
take place in the fall of 2014. Therefore, the member contribution rate listed in the above 
table is expected to remain unchanged until July 1, 2015. 

For more information, you may visit the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov. If you 
have questions, please contact the CalPERS Customer Contact Center at 
888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377). 

Sincerely, 

ALAN MILLIGAN 
Chief Actuary 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25, 2015 

FROM: FINANCE AND CITY MANAGER DEPARTMENTS 

SUBJECT: BUDGETING PRINCIPLES FOR THE 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budget principles and adopt 
budget principles for the 2015-2016 fiscal year that will serve as a guide in staff's preparation of the 
draft annual budget. 

BACKGROUND: Each year, the City prepares and adopts an annual budget. The annual budget is 
at the very heart of the City's operations, giving direction from the City Council to the City Manager 
about how to run the day to day City functions. The budget not only outlines the City's financial 
plan, but also establishes the framework of how the City will provide services to the community. 
Principles and objectives identified in the budget establish metrics against which actual 
performance can be measured. 

To ensure the draft budget is prepared consistent with the Council's direction, the City adopts 
budget principles. These principles range from general policy statements to goals for projects and 
programs. In the preparation of the draft budget, staff integrates these principles into specific goals 
for the fiscal year. The Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget Principles, along with related 
accomplishments are attached for reference. 

DISCUSSION: The advantage of adopting Budget Principles is increased clarity and direction; and 
to communicate these principles to Capitola residents and other stakeholders. The Budget 
Principles also provide clear indication of budget priorities and direction to staff. The Budget 
Principles are consistent with the City's goals of fiscal responsibility, public service, communication, 
and transparency. 

All budget principles, along with goals, departmental objectives, and accomplishments will be 
included in the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Draft Budget. 

For the coming fiscal year, staff recommends the Council review the previous year's principles, and 
consider how they should be modified to reflect updated City priorities. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The annual review and revision of Budget Principles is one component of the 
City's ongoing effort to establish, and frequently evaluate, priorities for operating and capital needs. 
These budget principles clearly articulate the City's financial management strategies. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget Principles 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director ., 

Reviewed and FO~ 
By City Manager \J -

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\Budgeting Principles staff report.docx 
-137-

Item #: 9.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF FEBRUARY 25, 2015 

FROM: FINANCE AND CITY MANAGER DEPARTMENTS 

SUBJECT: BUDGETING PRINCIPLES FOR THE 2015-2016 FISCAL YEAR 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budget principles and adopt 
budget principles for the 2015-2016 fiscal year that will serve as a guide in staff's preparation of the 
draft annual budget. 

BACKGROUND: Each year, the City prepares and adopts an annual budget. The annual budget is 
at the very heart of the City's operations, giving direction from the City Council to the City Manager 
about how to run the day to day City functions. The budget not only outlines the City's financial 
plan, but also establishes the framework of how the City will provide services to the community. 
Principles and objectives identified in the budget establish metrics against which actual 
performance can be measured. 

To ensure the draft budget is prepared consistent with the Council's direction, the City adopts 
budget principles. These principles range from general policy statements to goals for projects and 
programs. In the preparation of the draft budget, staff integrates these principles into specific goals 
for the fiscal year. The Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget Principles, along with related 
accomplishments are attached for reference. 

DISCUSSION: The advantage of adopting Budget Principles is increased clarity and direction; and 
to communicate these principles to Capitola residents and other stakeholders. The Budget 
Principles also provide clear indication of budget priorities and direction to staff. The Budget 
Principles are consistent with the City's goals of fiscal responsibility, public service, communication, 
and transparency. 

All budget principles, along with goals, departmental objectives, and accomplishments will be 
included in the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 Draft Budget. 

For the coming fiscal year, staff recommends the Council review the previous year's principles, and 
consider how they should be modified to reflect updated City priorities. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The annual review and revision of Budget Principles is one component of the 
City's ongoing effort to establish, and frequently evaluate, priorities for operating and capital needs. 
These budget principles clearly articulate the City's financial management strategies. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Adopted Fiscal Year 2014/2015 Budget Principles 

Report Prepared By: Tori Hannah 
Finance Director ., 

Reviewed and FO~ 
By City Manager V-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2015 Agenda Reports\022514 Budget Meeting\Budgeting Principles staff report.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-138-



Fiscal Policy Principles 
Principle Program Status 

Maintain a balanced budget and 
ensure fiscal stability 

End each year with a positive 
fund balance 
 

Projecting a fund balance of over 
$648,000 

Continue to reestablish the City 
reserves 

Contributing $647,700 to 
Reserves in Fiscal Year 14/15.  
The combined Contingency and 
Emergency Reserve fund 
balances will reach $2.8 million 
at the end of the fiscal year.  The 
reserves are anticipated to be 
fully funded in Fiscal Year 
2015/16 

Continue to examine contract 
services to reduce costs and 
increase efficiency levels 

Ongoing 

Review and prioritize City 
services 
 

Ongoing 

Develop a Facility Maintenance 
Fund 

Established a Facility Reserve 
Fund with $167,000 
 
Funded an $80,000 Community 
Room Project which opened in 
January 2015 

 
Support economic development Work with the Capitola Mall to 

facilitate Mall improvements 
Ongoing 

Reexamine the In-Lieu Parking 
Program   

Council direction to defer until 
there was an actual applicant for 
an outdoor dining expansion 

Continue to research economic 
development options and tools 

Ongoing 

 
Maintain a responsible level of 
fees 

Review and revise the City fee 
schedule 

Initiated a fee study and 
completed the review and 
evaluation process 
 
Fee study results and anticipated 
proposed changes to be 
presented this Spring 

 

 

 

-139-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf



Public Service Principles 
Principle Program Status 

Maintain a transparent, efficient, 
and accessible government 

Seek opportunities to improve 
citizen communication through 
the City's website and social 
media 
 

Added the Recreation 
Department and the Museum to 
the City’s website.  Common 
look and feel to all departments 
to facilitate ease of use. 

Expand City's ability to accept 
credit cards 

Offer mobile credit card 
payment solutions for parking 
meter and pay stations. 

Produce timely, accurate, and 
easy to read financial reports 

Continually looking for ways to 
improve reporting. 

Maintain the City’s social media 
presence 

Recreation department 
expanded the use of Facebook 
and other social media posting 
resulting in expanding our page 
“likes” from under 30 to over 
500. 

 
Recognize the high priority the 
community places on public 
safety 

Provided staff training to raise 
expertise levels 

Ongoing 

Explore grant opportunities for 
Police Department in-vehicle 
video systems 

Complete Police in-vehicle and 
body camera evaluation program 
and prepare for installation 

 
Continue to review funding and 
funding sources for CIP, 
Community Based Health and 
Human Service Providers, 
Begonia Festival, and other 
community organizations 

Establish two year grant cycle for 
Community Based Health and 
Human Service Providers 
 

Entered  into 2-year contracts 
with Community Grantees for 
Fiscal Year 2014/2015 and 
2015/2016 

 
Continue to perform timely 
inspection services and 
efficiently process building and 
permit applications 

Ensure programs are in place to 
judiciously respond to public and 
private development projects 

Ongoing 

 
Evaluate new recreational 
programs through research and 
outreach 

Recreation Department added 
45 new classes. 
 

Continually looking for new class 
opportunities 

   
Maintain existing Museum 
historic photograph and exhibit 
services for local residents, as 
well as area visitors 

 

Museum continued to expand 
promotional marketing of the 
Museum to attract new visitors.  

Museum attendance for March 
1, 2014 through Dec. 31, 2014 
was 7,985 

New Museum Exhibit: 
Postmarked Capitola:  A History 
Through Postcards 

Exhibit opens February 28, 2015.  
A reception will take place on 
March 21, 2015. 

-140-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf



 

Public Improvement Principles 
Principle Program Status 

Continue to maintain City 
infrastructure by providing 
maximum funding for the 
pavement management program 

Complete Clares Traffic Calming 
Project 

Design contract awarded, project 
on hold to allow sewer project 
on Clares to be completed 

Implement proposed Measure O 
CIP/Streets funding plan 
 

Funded the Fiscal Year 14/15 CIP 
Budget with $500,000 in new 
Measure O funds.  Projects 
included:  Park Avenue Paving 
and Bike Lane; annual slurry seal 
project, and  Monterey and Park 
Railroad Station and Park 

Utilized engineering consultants 
to improve project delivery 
schedules 

Consultant selection on-going 

Complete annual slurry seal 
project 

Completed annual slurry seal 
project which consisted of 
resurfacing Rosedale Avenue, 
Carl Lane, Alma Lane, and 
Rosedale Circle 

 
Complete infrastructure 
improvements at McGregor site 
for dog, bike, and skate park 

Completed infrastructure 
improvements at McGregor 
Park. 

Park is slated to be open this 
fiscal year. 

 
Maintain and improve Capitola's 
natural resources and 
sustainable green programs 
 

Update Green Building 
Ordinance  

In progress 

Continue to increase recycling 
diversion rates through 
expansion of existing programs 

Ongoing, waiting on most 
current diversion rates. 

Fund the $90,000 NPDES 
program and water quality 
monitoring 

Maintained riparian restoration 
and maintenance funding at 
$10,000 
 
Continued to implement Soquel 
Creek Management Plan be 
stewards to the creek 

Maintain $9,000 in funding for 
recycling education 

Ongoing, including funds for 
New Brighton Middle School 
recycling program 

-141-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf



Principle Program Status 
Ensure maintenance and 
cleanliness of City facilities, 
sidewalks, and streets 

Increase street and facilities 
maintenance through allocation 
of Measure O resources 

Street crew positions are now 
filled.   

Develop Village sidewalk 
cleaning options in partnership 
with the CWVBIA 

Completed development of 
theVillage Sidewalk Cleaning 
Program 

Development of the Village 
Sidewalk Cleaning Program 

Completed 

Consider mechanisms to ensure 
long term Wharf maintenance 

Possible capital funding sources 
have been identified 

 
Complete City adoption of the 
General Plan and zoning 
ordinance update, including 
Village parking standards 

Adoption of the General Plan Completed 

 
Support the Capitola Library Continue active involvement on 

the Santa Cruz County Library 
Joint Powers Board  

Ongoing 

Continue to accelerate the 
Library Trust funding through 
Successor Agency 

Submitted last payment to fully 
fund the Library obligation in 
February 

Support Library Subcommittee 
to review location/design 
options 

Capitola Library location selected 

 
Improve pedestrian/Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) access 
in the City 

Continue to closely monitor ADA 
compliance in all new 
construction 

Appropriated an additional 
$75,000 towards ADA 
improvement projects 

 
Continue effort to develop 
parking structure to free up 
lower Pacific Cove for alternative 
uses 

Established mayor’s committee  
to work on public outreach 

Ongoing 

 
Evaluate additional projects Continue to seek opportunities 

to reduce City water use 
Ongoing 

 Consider “Welcome to Capitola” 
art project 

Art and Cultural commission 
currently looking at project 

 $500,000 Community 
Development Block Grant to 
reinstate the Housing 
Rehabilitation and Mortgage 
Assistance Programs 

Received 

-142-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf



Principle Program Status 

Open the entire Rispin property 
to the public 

Opened the Rispin Park to the 
public 

Completed 

Receive input on Rispin Park 
improvements 

Held a public hearing in February 

 
Pursue park improvement grants 
to complete Rispin Park 

Community Development Block 
Grants for $383,925 for the 
renovation of Rispin Park 

Received 

 

-143-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-144-


	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 PMCITY MANAGER'S OFFICE
	1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR (Govt. Code §54957.6)
	Negotiator: Jamie Goldstein, City Manager
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Capitola Police Captains, (3) Capitola Police Officers Association, (4) Confidential Employees; and (5) Mid-Management Group


	SPECIAL JOINT BUDGET STUDY SESSION - 6:00 PM 
	2. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Stephanie Harlan, Ed Bottorff, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini and Mayor/Chair Dennis Norton
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	A Introduction of the City's new Senior Accountant, Mark Sullivan.

	4. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	5. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A Quarterly Financial Reports – Second Quarter Budget Report and First Quarter Sales Tax Report.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Receive Mid-Year 2014/2015 Fiscal Year Budget Financial Report, and consider budget amendments.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	B. Receive the California Public Employees Retirement System Annual Actuarial Valuation Reports as of June 30, 2014. (This agenda item was continued from the February 11, 2015, City Council meeting.)
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]
	[Attach 3.pdf]
	[Attach 4.pdf]

	C. Review of prior year’s Budget Principles and determination of the Budget Principles for the 2014/2015 Fiscal Year.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]


	10. ADJOURNMENT


